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First Women Bank Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2023
2023 2022
Note {Rupees in "000) —--—-
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks & 2028217 209218
Bulunces with other banks 7 1,891 824
Lendings to financial institutions 5 1,882 344 6,634,107
Investments 4 44329973 28,980,949
Advances 10 8,220,300 L1062, 156
Fixed assets Il T56, 794 a1l 472
Intangible azzers 12 45,565 4y, 254
Oither nzsots 13 [2.597 418 |, 125 6549
0,792,502 50,673,659
LIABILITIES
Bills pavable 13 149177 L4070
Barrowings L& 32622818 13,653,728
Depogits and other accounts b7 31,332,331 J2 064 330
Deferred tax liabilities §. 177,698 542314
Other liabilities 1) 3,427 956 2,154 863
67,709, 930 48,169,125
NET ASSETS 3082522 2,504 534
REFRESENTED BY
Share capital 20 3994113 3,994,113
Reserves - sialutory reserve 347,810 431313
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 21 389,668 60,747
Actumulated loss {1840 %0 (2,08 | 630
3,082,522 2,504,534
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

The annexed notes from | o 46 form an Im-sgral part of these financial statements.

l._.-l
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First Woamen Bank Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the vear ended December 31, 2023

2025 2023
Miite  =eemeeee (Rupecs in M) seemsees
Mark=up ! retum / inferest earned 24 12477.815 5,640 042
Mark-up / retumn / interest expensed L3 10.403,732 4417, 189
Med marki-up £ interest fcome 2074083 [ 222.B53

NON MARK-UP /! INTEREST INCOME

Fae and commission ncome 26 Bl Q2 6957
Dividend iiwome 5026 12,011
Fargign exchanges income 3,003 &.890
{Loss)/ gain an securities 27 277 Lo
Cither ancome 2% 2,064 2EB5
Total poay mark-up / interest income G, 745 Qd 874
Tatal Income 2167828 1,317,727

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXFENSES

Operating expenses 29 1,345 955 1204 825

Other charges 30 1,254 1,311
Total non-mark-up/ in1eres) expenses {1,547, 188 [1,206,136)

Profit before provisions H20 639 111,59
Provisions and write offs - nat at {163,285 (6,720

Extra avdinary ¢ uniesual items _ - =

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 457,354 104,871
Taxation 32 (135,189} (43,487}
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION —t2lES  _ 613B4
e x e [Ru [IEEE) —

Basic earnings per share 33 0.81 0.15
—_—————

Diluted earnings per share 33 .81 0I5

The annexed nodcs from 1 o 46 form an Intsgral part of these financial stitements.
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First Women Bank Limited
Statemient of Comprehensive Income
For the year eadéd December 31, 2023

223 2022
Mofe = (Rupees in "00) -
Profit afier faxaton for the vear 322,143 &1 384
Oither comprehensive ingome
Iems that may be reclassified to profit amd loss
in subsequent periods:
Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of investments - net of tax o1 &2 123,582 (45,425)
Piems thaf will not be reclassified to profit and
loss im subsequent periods:
Femaasurement gain an defined banetit
obligations - net of tax 8,393 10,500
Movement in surplug on révaluation of fixed
adsels - net of iex a1l | 13 54 =
132,243 10,900
Total comprebensive income for the year e 11988 J6.850
—_—— e

The annexed noles from 1 to 46 fonm an integral Rart of these financial statamends,
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First Wemen Bank Limitsd
Sranement of Changes o Equity
Far the year ended December 3, 205

Herwe
Share capitm {Staturory “‘"p::""" 1r Toasl
ra e rederee) )
Opeaing ballos s s Januery 01, 2021 1,994,103 1%, (1108 LIE 5D X (ERELELSE] 1451
Profii aficr iaxatizsn = - : . s 81,384 £1,538
b comprebersisve (loas) [ income - pot allax
-wlaluﬂ‘mh rovaluntion off Exsd 18851
- et o v ] - - . & - -
- defici on rove baah o of ESSTETLS - 08t of e = - El5, 4280 (45 425) . 5 AD5)
- pemeepuremeal pun =n defimed benehit chiipsticss - = L ' = 108341 15,500
Teeal comprebensive th.-e_n'['lnll - J [EEE k] - {5 A28 T 24,5540
Lsipisei af ree change f veealuation of Axed asoes - - R (},578 : (15781
Tranelet 12 FATELGN Teserve - 1237 3 ' - {13371 :
Trunsher of wcramentad depeecintssh Bam s
on revaluarion - nel el ax - - - (T.TE P e T, 7R -
Balsnce & 8 Tecember 31, 2022 FYCTRAE] FETETE TBEATT] 571 T L8] 651 1504354
Tl whisr Wi - - . . a o rl 1S 312,864
Chker comprehens v o - re ol 1y B
. change i warphes o the revaloation of fhoed e y
- nef o mad . Y E 11338 115,549 . 113,849
- Worplu (e sevalation of InveRTmER: - Rt of B . - 133,562 . 122562 . ExY, S
< iemessrerment gain o defired berefil albgnions . - = = - 1853 13,353
Toted comgrehrnwme ineeime /1o . - k1% 582 1E3.845 374353 LD §77. 564
Trkzsier o dannisry resane - 116,497 % a 11164873 -
Imrpact af matz chisge in sevakuaiion of fized asi . - - 1 . -
Trariler of Incemerial deprecabon from mrplos
a revakanos - pe of i v : . .50 18,519 ER AL 4
Balsmce ay 5 Peermisar 30, 1013 mu ST ELD 17 |E

The sansxad sotes G | o 48 foom an wiegeal pin of theas finsnsial Marsmenn
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Flrat Wamen Bank Limited
Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended December 31, 2023

CASH FLAWYS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prafit bedfore axazlon
Lega! Dividend inoome

Al jusiments

["-Hfﬂ'ﬂldiﬂli o openiting fixed assels and right ol 152 assels
ArnoatizalE

Provigiom nd write offs excluding reovery ol writien ofT bod debis
Mt iy sule of Ticed asseis

Claarge [ordalined bengfit plans

L [ ([ Chain) om securiigs

Ineres oapemie oo lense Eabilicy

(Imerease] / decresse i operating assels
Lesdings to Financinl insilutions
Aulvmanes
Chher azsey

Inerease [ {decrease) b aperating lmahilities
Bills payable
Horrowings [kam Enancial instiiations
Deppsing and diber sccounts

Ol Nabaldties fexcluding corrent taxation)

Paymment imade 1 defined henefit plans

Inocme try paid
Mei vush ows from operating activites

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Ieyestments: i avai inbie-Toe-galo securities - et
Diiwiderel rocesved
Purchnse of fised asseis
Additiong to imiangibles st
Procesda from sole of fiked asseis
Mt cash Mons wsed in investing aciivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Pawmends of lease lishility agaimst right of e asses
Mol smsh flow used in finoncing activigies

Imerease | (devrvase) in cosh amid cozh u:iuh-u]-:n:lx
Cosh pnd. cash equivalents at beginming of the year
Cazh pad cash cyuivalenis ai end of ihe year

The anmexed nats fram | oo 46 fooman niegral part of ihese Diecial glatement,
A

Chicl Financial
O ficer

A

Director
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23 p L ¥
i Rupees im0
457354 B4 BT
[5.026) {11113
452328 82 9061
174,373 | 164,105
16554 ki Wy b
61355 #,72
[397) [aGE]
IRATD 11447
i (L7
53109340 41624 |
464897 257 434
BO0.0125 350,659
4,751,763 14,5642 107)
25850958 [1,735.433)
{11,467, 759] (k1 1,586}
4. 130,15} {6,006, 1 1)
7,207 (5,615
1, 905,01 3974285
(RALGUY|  6.E0 704
| 493 680 BRI S05
19.5HT 9TR L1438 851
16,356,587 4 A0 4454
{24,545} {13, 108)
{19 B0y (70,632}
1,135, 544 4,809 414
15, 194, 896) (5234, 15d)
%026 (2010

[15,339,305)  (3.377.738)
(80,683) (44, 185)

(B OR3S (40, 189
720,066 (60R,513)
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First Women Bank Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2023

L

1.1

L2

13

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

First Wioemen Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now
Companies Act, 200 7) on November 28, 1969 1n Bakistan as an unguoted public Hmited company and
commenced operations on December 02, 1989, The Bank is-engaged in commercial banking end
related services. The registered office of the Benk is situated at ground fleor, 5.T7.5. M. Foundation
Building, Civil Lines, Karachi. The Bank operates a network of forty two branches as st December 31,
2023 (2022; forty two branches). The short ferm and long term credit ratings of the Bank rated by
PACEA In June 2023 are ‘A2’ and 'A-" respectively. The Bank iz conirolled by Government of Pakiztan
through Ministry of Fingnce {which holds 82.64 %6 of the Bank’s share capital).

Being a public sector bank, in terms of the Stae Bank of Pakistan (SBP), prescribed minimom capital
requirements vide i1s Jatter reference BPRODVBALCP/G27/32/2014 dated January 01, 2014, the Bank is
required to have a minimum paid up capisal (ne of losses) (MCR) of Rs, 3 Billion and capiial adegquacy
ratio (CAR) of 18% at all times, subject 10 the condition that MCR level shall remain enforced untal the
Bank remamns a pubhe sactor entity, the Bank will not be allowsd to pay dividend umtil its paid-up
capital and reserves reach Bs. & billion end the per party exposure limit of the Bank will be 530% of the
prudential regulation’s limits untl the Bank's pard-up capital and reserves reach Ra 6 billion.

The Bank has earmed pet protit of Ra 0322 hillion for the vear ended December 31, 2025 and a5 of
this date, the Bank's MCR (repeesenting pand up capital net of accumiulated lossed) was Ra, 215 billion
which iz less 1ian the minimum required kmount.

Under BED Clreular Mo, |9 of 2008 duted September 03, 2008 of the SBP any bank that fails 1o mesl
the MCE within the stipulated period shafl render itself liabl= to the following actions:

il Imposition of such resmmctions on it business ncluding restrctions on acceptance of deposits
and lending as may be deemed 1t by the State Bank:

it}  Descheduling of the bank, thereby converting it into a non-scheduled bank.

iify Cancellation of the banking license if the State Bank believes thatl the bank is not in a position to
meet fhe minimum paid up capital requiremnent or CAR

Privatization stotus of the Bank

The Ministry of Privatizanion stated that the Cabinet Committees on Privatizanion (CCal), in 13 meeting
beld on Ociober 31, 2018, head placed the First Women Benk Limited (FWEBL) on the Active
Privatization Frogram, duly ratified by the Federal Cebinet on Movember 1, 2018, Accordingly, the
Privatizanen Commizsion i2sued a Bequest for Proposals (BFF) on October 18, 2019, invifing
Technical and Financial Fn‘lpl:lﬂ15 A Per :umplz‘ri.ng the technical and fAnancial gvaluation of the bids,
the conseninm comprising M's Bridge Factor & Maticnel Bank of Pekistan was appointed as the
Financial Adwvisor for the privetization of PWBL with the approval of Beard of the Privatization
Commission Board on December 27, 2018, Accordingly, Financial Advisery Services Agreement
(FASA) was signed on January 27, 20240,

Page- 1
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1.4

The Ministry of Privatization further noted that the due diligence report of the Bank was finalized in
Tung 2020 and the Cabinet Committee on Privatization approved the Trangaction Structure on August
21, 2020. However, owing 1o the non-availability of latest audited accounis, further steps including the
issuance of Eol/R30Q, could not take place which would resume afier the financial statements will be
approved by the Baand.

oing concern basis of accounting

The Bank's MCR. (representing paid up capital net of aceumulated losses) was Rs. 2.15 billion (2022:
Rs. 1.91 billion} which is less than the minicum required amount by Rs. 0.85 billion (2022: 1.09
billion).

The Bank's paid-up capital (net of losses) stood below the MCR of Rs 3 Billion prescribed by the SBP
(specifically for the Bank) which non-compliance may resolt in adverse régulatory actions by SBP as
mentioned in nate 1.2 of the financial statments.

These financial statements have béen prepared on & going concern basis based on the fallowing Tacts:

- Abave fact has slready been reported by the Bank to the State Bank of Pakistan and also 1o the
Ministry of Finance {MoF), Government of Pakistan (GoP) as a major shareholder for an
mrrangement 1o fill-up the shortage of Bank's MICR and in order to aveid eny punitive action, the
Bank's management 8 in continuous liaison with SBP and MoF GoP, Further, 1o date, the SBEP
has not taken =my advarse action or imposed amy restriction that could impast the normal
operations of the Bank, Moreover, the Bank is in the privatization list of the GoP, and is being
getivaly pursned for this purpose by the Privatization Commission which also adds positively to
the above.

- Bank's management and the Board is fully confident that the regulator and the major shareholder
(MoF GoP} will extend the due support for mesting the capital requirements, which is also
gvidem from the fact that historically the shareholder has numerously injected capital in the Bank
whenever there was a shortfall. Despite the losses the Bank 18 compliant with minimum required
Capital Adequacy Ratio of 18% and is expected to maintain this adequacy in periods subssgquent
to December 31, 2023, which i an indicator of strong asset base of the Bank.

- The GoF wia the MoF i.e. bank's major shareholder holding 82.64 %0 of the Bank's equity is fully
committed to sepporting the Bank, whenever required, to enable it to continue as going concern,
through policy and other intervention. Based on the hisworical available support and central
bank’s action and also the fact that GoP has assured necessary inlerventions when reguired to
enable the Bank to continue as a going concem, management believes that the Bank shall remain
a going concern in foreseeable future, however, it may not do ¢ in an adverse eventuality or
unexpecied events.

These events or conditions along with other matters as set forth in Wote 1.2 indicate that 8 material
uiCerlamly exsls that may cast siyiﬁnmt doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concarn
and, therefore, the Bank may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. However, these financial stalements have been prépared on & going concerm basis
whicl assurmes that the Bank shall operate 5 business, realize its assors, discharge its linbilities and
obtain refinencing (if necessany), in the pormel course of business. Accordingly, the financial
siatements do not inciude any -adjustments 10 the camyving amounts and classification of asssis,
liabilities and reported expenses that may otherwise be required if the going concem hasis was not
appropriate.
Pag=-2
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1.3

BASIS OF FRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements
prescribed by the SBP vide BFRD Circular No. 2, dated January 25, 2018,

In accordance with the directives of the Faderal Government regarding the shifting of the banking
system to |stamic modes, SBP has issued various circulars from time fo time, Permissible forms of
frade related mode of financing includs purchase of pocds by the banks from their customers and
immediate mesale to them at appropriate profit in price on deferred pavment besis. The purchases and
sules arising under these wrrangements are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are
restricted to the amount of facility actually utihsed and the appropriste portion of profit thereon.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prapared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The sccounting and reporting slandards comprise oft

International Financial Reporting Standards (JFRS) issued by the [nternational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

. Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Compantes.Aet, 2017, and

Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakiztan and the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance. 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or
the directives jssued by the SBF and the SECP differ with the requirements of the [FRS, requirements

of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 19632, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall
prevacl.

The SBP wvide BSD Circuler Moo 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard (1A5) 39 "Fmanciel Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
and [AS 40 "Investment Property” for banking compamies tll further instructions, Further, according
o 4 noetficathon of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through 5.8.0, No.
411 ¢1) /7 2008 dated 28 Aprl 2008, [FES 7 "Firancial Instruments: Disclosuees™ has not been made
applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not Been considered in the
preparation. of these financial staemems. However, investments have been classified and valued In
accordance with the requirements of varous circulars isseed by the SBP

Agcordingly, the requirements of theze standerds have pot been considered in the preparation of these
financial statements.

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounfing Standards that
are effective in surrent year

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments thal are
mendatory for the Bank's accounting pericds beginning on or after January 01, 2023, These are not
considered to be relevant or have any significany effect on the Bank's operations and therefore have not
been detailed in these financial statemenis.

Page - 3
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Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 1o Published Approved Accounting Standards that
are mot vet effective

The followirg Intérnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Siandards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations therata will he affective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2024

Standard, Interpretation or Amendment Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements- Disclosure of

pccounting policies January 01, 2024

Amendments o [FRS 16 ' Leases’ -Clarification on how  seller-lessee
subseguently measures sale and leaseback transactions Janitary 01, 2024

Amendments t0 [AS | 'Presentation of Financial Siatements's Classification of
liabilities a5 current of AGn-current Jarary 01, 2024

The Bank esxpects that amendments to existing accounting and reporting standards will not affect its
financial statements in the peried of initial application except in case of IFRS 9.

IFRES 9 Financial Insirumenis:

Az per SBF BPRD Circular No 7 of 2023 dated April 23, 2023, the effactive date for the
implementation of IFRE 9 Financisl Instruments i3 accounting pariod bepinning on or after January |,
2024, 5BP hed earlier issved BPRD Clreular Mo 3 of 2022 dated July 05, 2022 where Jdetailed
instructions on the application of the Standard, including transitional provisions, impact on the Capital
Adequacy Ratio {CAR) calculation and reporting requiremenss were issaed. The SBP's [FRS 9
application instructions appiy to both the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Bank,
However, the financial staternems of overseas branches, subsidiaries and associates thet are prepared
for the purpose of consolidation a1 Bank level would be based on their respective host country's
regulatory accounting practices Uil ong vear from the effective date of [FRS 9 implementation,
Aferwards, banks are required to comply with the réquirements of [FRS ¢ and SBP's application
instructions for consolidated financial staerments.

The IFRS 9 epplieation instrustions and grideiines that have been issued as part of the circular include
the following key componsnts:

8)  Basis for classification and measurament of debt and eguity securities;

b}  Framework for determination of “Expected Credit Losses (ECL)" under the reguiremants of
[FRS 9, including required risk management palicies;

e) Credit exposures (in local currency) that have been suaranieed by the Government and
Crovertiment Securities have been exempied from the application of the above ECL Framework;

Fage -4




dj In respect of non-preforming exposures (Stage 3 exposures) provision would be made
considering higher of [FRS 9 ECL or provision computed under existing PRs’

) In order to mitigate the impact of ECL provisioning on capital, a tansitional
amangement is allowed to the banks to absorb the impact on regulatory caplial and fully
described in Annexure B to the eforcmentioned circular,

The State Bank of Pakistan vide its BPRD circular Mo, 2 dated February 09, 2023 has issued
revised formats for intenm and annual financial statements of the banks for the accounting

perinds starting from January 01, 2023, which shall include the presentation and disclosures on
adoption of IFRS 9 as applicable in Pakistan.

Impact on equity and regulatory capital on adoption of [FRS 9

During 2023, the Bank has performed an imipact assessment after applying the SBP's IFRS 9
instructions. The assessment is based on avajlable information and may be subject to changes
arising from further reasonable and supportable information being made aveilable to the Bank at
the time of finalizing the impact for inltlal application of IFRS 9.

The Bank will adopt [FRS 9 in its entirety effective Janvary 01, 2024 with o modified
retrospective approach for restatement. As permitted by IFRS-9, the Bank will not be restating
comparatives on initial application. The cumulative impact of the initial application will be
recorded as an adjustment to opening equity as at January 01, 2024,

The total estimated adjustment {net of tax) of the sdoption of [FRS 9 on the opening balence aof
the Bank's equity as at January 01, 2024 would be a reduction in equity of approximately Rs.
31.246 million, with corresponding impacts as follows:

a) An increase of approximately Rs. 31.246 million related to classification and
measurement changes.

In order to mitigate the impact of ECL provisioning on capital, a transitional arrangement is
allowed 1@ the banks to sbsorb the impact on regulatory capital. Accordingly, banks, which
choose to apply this transitional arrangement, may implement this in accordance with SBP's
Guideline for absorption of ECL for CAR purposes as mentioned in Annexure-B of BPRD
Circular no 3 of 2022

The estimated impact of initial adoption of TFRS 9 on the Rank's capital ratios, without
nccounting Tor the allowed transitional arrangement, would be as follows:

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio - 27.16%

Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio - 27,16%

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio - 31.94%

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the existing prudential regime

to the exterit of the Bank's domestic operations, whereas the requirements of this standard have
been incorporated for the overseas jurisdictions where [FRS 9 has already been adopted,
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4.1

4.2

There are certiin other new amendments that ae mandatory for the Bank's sccounting periods
beginning on or afier famuary |, 2033, but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Bank's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.
BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Accounling convention

These financial statements have besn prepared under the historical cost convention excepl that lease
hald land and buildings are stated at revalusd smounts less accumulated depreciation and impairmen
losses, if any, available-for-sale and held-for-irading investments and derivative finencial instrurments
are measured at fair values.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees. which is also the Bank's functional

cuerency. Except a3 indicated, financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded o
nearest thousand.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Cush and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with tressury banks, balances with other
Banks in current and deposit accounts, national prize bonds, any overdrawn nostro accounts and call
lendings having maturity of three months or less.

Investments
The Bank classifies its investment porifolio into following categories:
a)  Held-for-trading

These are securities which are either acquired Tor generating profit from shor-rerm Muctuations
i market pricas, inferest rale movemnents, dealers margin or are sccurities included in a portfalio
in which & patteérn of short-term profit taking exists,

by Held-to-maiurity

These are securities with fixed ar determinable payments and fixed materity in respect of which
the Bank has the positive intent and ability 1o hold 1ill maturity,

€]  Available-for-sale
These are seeurities that do not fall under the "held-for-trading' and 'held-to-matwrity’ categories.

Pape -6




4.1.1
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4.2.3

.24

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention are recognised at trade date, which is the date at which the Bank

commits to purchase or sell the investments except for money market contracts which are secognised
om the settlement date,

Initinl recognition and messurement

Investrments other than those classified as held for trading’ are intially recognised at cost. Transaction
costs associated with these investrment ars included in cost of investments. Investments clzssified as
‘held for trading’ are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit
and loss account.

Subséquent measurement

In accordance with the requiremerts of SBP, quoted securities other than those classified as 'held to
maturity’, are subseguently rémeasured to fair value. Surplus [ (deficit) arising on revaluation of
securities classified as 'evailable for zale' 3 included in the statement of comprehénsive income.
Burplus [ (deficit) arizging on pevaluation of investments classified as held for trading” is taken to the
profit and loss account, Investments classified as "held to maturity’ are carried at amortised cost.

Investment classified as held 1o maturity are subsequently measured ar amorised cost using the
effective intersst rite method, bess impeirment Iosses, i any.

Unquoted equity secarities, are valued a1 lower of cost and the break-up value. Break-up value of
equity securities is-calculated with reference to the net assets of the Investee company as per the latest
available audited financial statements.

Lisied equity sheres are valued at mtes quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. Oovernment Securitiss
are valued on the basis of PRREV rates. Terms Finance Certificates are valued at the rafes quoted by
MLFAP,

Impairment

Impairmen: loss in cespect of aguity securities classified as available for sale-and other held 1o mamurty
invesiments are recognised based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairmen? as
a result of one of more avenis that may have an impact on the estimared fururs cash Mows of the
invesiments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an eguity Investment below i cost iz
glso considered an objective evidence of impairmeni. Provision for diminution in the value of debt
securities is made as per the Prudential Reguigtions issued by the State Bank of Pakistan, In case of
impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in
surplus / (deficit)y on revaluation of securities on the statemem of Onancial position & removed there
from and recognised in the profit and joss account. For investments classified as held to maturity, the
impairment loss s recognised in the profit and loss aseoumt

Gains or losses on disposal of imvesimants during the vear are taken 10 the profit and loss acoount,

=
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.5.1

Lendings to / borrowings from linancial institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of borrowing {repurchase) from and lending (reverse repurchase) to
linancial institutions, at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These sre recordid as under:

Sule under repurchase obligation

Securities sold with a simultiwous commitment o repurchase sl a specified future date (repo)
conlinue to be recognized in the balance sheer and are measured in accordance with accounting
pelicies for investments and counter parly liebility is included in borrowing from financial institutions.

The differsnce between sale and repurchise price is acerued or a time proportionate basts over the
period of the contract and recorded a8 an expense,

Purchase under resale obligation

Securities purchased with # corresponding commitment o resell at & specified future date (reverse
repa) are not recogmzed in fhe balance sheet and instead ameunts paid under these arrangements are
included in lendings to financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is
accrued on a tine proportionate hasis over the period of the contract and recorded as income,

Other obligations

Cther horrowings including borrowings from SBP are recorded at the proceads received. Mark-up on
such horrowing is charged to the profit and loss account on alime proportion basis.

Advances

Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific and general provision is
determined on the basis of the Prudential Regulations and other directives issued by the SBP. The net
provision made / reversed during the vear is charged o $imtement of profil or loss account and

accumulated provision is netted off against advances, Advances are written-off when there s no
realistic prospect of recovery,

FProperty and equipment

Tungibie nsscts

Ex¢ept for lease hold land and buildings, other items of property and equipment are stated &t cost less
seeumulated depreciation and sccumulated impainment losses, iT any, Lease hold land is stated at
revalued amounts wheregs the buildings are stated at revalued amounts |ess subsequent accumuiated
depreciation and impainment losses, 1 any

Depreceation is charged to the profit and loss account applying strivght line method. The rates of
depreciation are given in note 1001 to these financial staterments. The residual values, eseful lives and
depreclation methisds are reviewesd and changes, if any, are treated as change in accounling estimates,
at each balance sheet date. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assels are available
for wse, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.
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4.5.3

454

Surplus arising on revaluation of Jand and buildings is credited 1o the serplus on revaluation of
properly and equipment account. Deficit arising on subsequent revaluation of fixed nssets is charged to
Profit and Loss account, as allowed under the previsions of the Compenies Act, 2017, Revslustion is
carried cat with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrving amount of assets doss not differ
materially from the fair value. The surplus en revaluation of fixed wssets 1o the extent of Incremental
depreciation charged on the related assers, is transferred directly fo accumulated loss. In case of
revalued asset, any aceumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of ihe asset and the net amount restated 1o the revalued amount of the asser. The

stirplus arising on revaluation is disclosed as surplus on revaluation of property and equipment {as past
of equity - refer note 20 also),

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gains or losses on sale of property and equipment
are included in the profit and loss account in the year the asser is de-recognized, excepl that the related

surplus on revaluation of land and buildings (net of defierred 1ax) is rransferred directly to accumulated
laias.

Subsequent costs aré included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognizecd & a separale asset, as
appropriate, anly when it is probable that inurs cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainterance are
charged to the profit and loss sccount.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels are staled at cost less accumulaled amortizsation and sccumulated impairment losses,
if any. The cost of intangible assels are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight
line method at the rates stited in note 11, Costs associated with maintaining the software are

recognized as expense in the profit and loss account &s and when Incurred, The usefial lives of
intangible assets are reviewed and adjusted. if appropeiate, at sach balance sheet date

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated st cost less impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assels:

A contract 15, or condaing & lease 1f the contract conveys a right 1o control the use of an identified asse
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Bank mainly leases properiies for its
operations. The Bank recognizes a right-of-use nssét and lease lability o the lease commencement
date, The right-of-use asset is initlally measured at cost, and subsequently &1 cost less any accumnulated
depretiation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The right=0l-use assel is depreciated wsing the siwalght ling method from the commencement date to the
earlier of end of the useful life of right-of-use nccet or end of the lease 1aem, The sstimated useful lives
of pssets are determined on the same basis as that for ewned assers. i addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
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4.6

4.7

4.8

d.B.1

Mon-banking asseis

Non-banking assels scquired in satisfaction of claime are initially recorded at cost and subsequently
carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, These assets are
revaiued by professionally qualified valuatoms with culficient regularity to ansurs that their pat earrying
value does not differ materially from their fair value. A swplus arising on revaluation of property s
eredited to the 'surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets' account and sny deficit arising on
revaiuation 13 taken 1o profil and loss account directly, Legal fess. transfer costs and direct costs of
gequiring title to property is chaseed 1o the protit mmd loss sccount.

Depreciation on assets (other than land) acquired in satisfaction of claims is cherged to the profil and
boss aceount on the same basis as deprectation charged on the Bank's owned fixed assets,

These assets are generally intended for sale. Gans and losses realised on the sale of such asseis are
disclosed separately from gains and losses realised on the sale of fixed asse1s, Surplus on revaluation
(met of deferred tax) realised on disposal of these assets is transferred directly 10 unappropriated profil,

If such an asset is subsequently used by the Bank for its own operations, the asset is transferred 1o
fixed assets along with any refated surplus:

Impeairment - non financial asseis

At each balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its assets (other than deferred tax
assets) 1o determine whether there is an indication that thase assets have suffercd an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated in order to determine the
exient of the impairment loss, It any. Recoverable amount i3 the greater of net selling price and value
in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asseis is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is
recognized as.an cxpense inmediately, except that the impairmant loss on revalusd fised fzse1s is first
adjusted against the related revaluation surplies to the extent (hat the impairment loss does not exceed
the surplus on revaluation of those assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and delerred tox. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit
and loss account except Lo the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in ather comprehensive

income / surplus on revaluation of assets in which case it is recognized in statement of comprehensive
imcame ! surplus on revaluation of azsels,

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the vear determined in accordance with
the prevailing laws for taxation on income eemed. The charge for current 1ax is calculated using the
previuling tax rates or tax rates expected 1o apply to the profits for the year. The charge for current tax

alsn includes adjustments: where considered negessary, relating to prior years which arse from
assessments finalized during the vear for such vears.
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4,82 Deferred

4.9

4.10

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporasy differences
as at the statement of financial position date between the amounts attributed 1o asseis and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and amounts used tor txation purposes. The Bank records deferred tax

assets | liabilities using tax rates, enacied or substantially enncted at the slatement of fancial position
date, that are expected to be applicable at the time of their reversal.

A deferred tax assel is recognised only to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be
mvailable against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred 1ax assets are raduced to the extent that it ig
no longer probable that the related tax benefis will be realized.

The Bank recognizes a deferred ax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of assels in

accordance with the requirements of IAS 12 "Income Taxes®. The related deferred tax assel [ limbitity
ks adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

The Bank recognizes a deferred tax sssas including on the carry forward of unused tax losses and

unised tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profits will be available againgt
which the unused sax losses and unused rax crediss can be utilized in accordance with 1he reguiremsnts
of IAS |2 "Income Taxes®,

Provisicas

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has & present obligation ilegal or constructive) as & ragult of

past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation and a rellable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provision agams identified non-funded lesses is recognized when intimated snd ressonable cemainty

Exisls Tor the Bank 1o ssiile the obligation. The loss is charged to the profit and loss account net of
enpacled recovery and is claszified under other liabilities.

Provisions are reviewed a1 each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimates,

Lease liability on right - of - use assets

The lease lability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nat paid at
the commencemant date, discounted using the interest rate impligit in the lease or, if that rate cannot ba
readily determined, the Bank's incremenal barrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased
by the interes: cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease pavments made, |1 is re-measured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or raie, a changs in
ussessimenl of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or @ termination oplion is
reasonably cerlain ned fo be exercised.
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4.12

413

Staff retirement benelits
Approved funded pension scheme (defined benefit plan)

The Bank operates o funded pension scheme for its employees. The fund was granied approval by the
Commissioner of Income Tax on & March 2000 1o 1ake offect from 1 October 1999, Provision is made
in these financial statemenis based on the aclearial valuation {conducted at the balance sheet date = 31
December 2022} uging the projected unit credit method. Above benefits are payable to staff at the time
of separation ( retirement from the Bank's services subject o the completion of qualifying period of
service on the basis of basic salaries, Remeasurement component, which is the net of actuarial gains
and losses is recognizad immediately in other comprehensive income whereis service cost and net

interest income | expense are charged to the profit and loss account. Effect of changes in the plan are
also recognised currently in the profit and |oss aceount

Approved fonded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan)

The Bank also operates a funded gratuity scheme for its employees. The fund was granted approval by
the Commissioner of Income Tax on 4 December 2018 to take effect from dth Seprember 2018
Provision i3 made in these financial stslements baged on the sctuarial valuation {conducted at the
balance shiet date - 31 December 2022) using the prajected unin credit method, Above benefits are
payibie 1o stalf at the ime of separation ¢ retirement from the Bank’s services subject 10 the completion
of qualifying period of service on the basis of basic salaries. Remeasuremen! component, which is the
net of sctoarinl gains and losses is secopnized immediately in oiher comprehensive income whereas
service cost and met inferes! income | expense wre charped to the profit and loas account.

Contributory provident fund

Up to 30 June 2017, the Bank operaled » non contributory provident fund in which monthly
contributions were made by employess a1 a rate of 12% aof basic salary, However this schame since
then has been discontinued but sorme dues have o be setiled.,

Unfunded gratulty acheme

Lip o 30 Seplember 2008, the Bank oparated an unfundsd gratuity scheme for its President (rafer nma
36). Liability and expense are récorded in accordance with the terms of the scheme. Howaver this
scheme since then has been discontinued and the dues have to be settled (after shareholders approval),

Employees' compensated ahsences

The Bank récognizes lability in respect of compensated sbserices of its employees in the period in
which ihese are eatned on the basis of actuarial valuation (conducted at the balamsce sheer date -
December 31, 2022) carried out using the Projected Unit Crediv Method, Actunrial gains / losses
charge for the year are immediately recognised in the profit and loss account

Bevenos recognilion

Revenue is pecogrived to the exient that the ceonomic benefits will flow to 1the bank and revenue ¢an
be rehably measured, These are recoznized as follow;
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4.14
4.14.1

4.14.2

4.14.3

4,15

4. 150

Mark-up / retuen / interest on regular advances and investments 18 recognized on a time
propomion basis. Where debt securities are purchased st préemium or discount, the same is
amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining matusity wsing the effective
interest method. Mark-up income due on non-performing advances are suspended as per the
requiraments of the Prudential Regulations,

- Mark-up / retum / interes: recovesable on classified advances and investments is recognized on
receipt basis, Mark-up / return / interest on classified rescheduled / restructured advances and
investinents i€ recognized as parmitted by the regulations of the SBP.

- Dividend income i recognized when the Bank's right to receive dividend 15 established.
- Ciain and koss on sale of invesiments s recognized 1o the profit and 1088 account currently.

= Fees, brokerage and commission are recognized when the services are rendered ( and over period
of services). Accoun? maintenance and sarvice charges are recognized when realized.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inlo rupees at the foreign exchange rates prevalent on
the transaction date, Monetary assels and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in Rupee terms
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Translation gains and losses

Transiation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account.

Commitments

Commitmants for oufstanding forward foreign exchanpge contracts are disclosed in these financial
starements af contracted rates. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of ceedit and letiers of

guararres dénominated in forsign currencies are expressed in Rupee terms ot the rates of exchange
prevailing at the balance gsheet date.

Financinl instruments
Financial assets and financial habblies

Finnncinl nssets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a party to
the contraciual provision of the ingrument. Financial zssets are de-recognized when the contractual
right tor future cash flows from the asset explres or |s transferred along with the risk and reward of the
aeset. Financial liahilities are de-recognized when obligation specific in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on dé-recognition of the financial asseis and lishilities is
recognized inm the profit and [oss sccowunt of the current peocied. The padicular recopnition  and

subsequent measurement methods adopted for significant Anancial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed in the individual poelicy statements assaciated with them,
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4,16

417

4.18

4.19

420

Derivative financinl instromenty

Derivasive finantial instrumentz are imitially recognized ar cost on the date on which a derivaiive
contract is entered inta and are subsequemtly remensured ar their fair values. All derivative Tinancial
instruments are carricd as assets when the fair value is positive and liability when fair value Is

negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss
account currently,

Off-serting

Financial assets and financial liahilithes are set off and the net amount is reported an the financial

statements when there is a legally enforceable right 10 set off and the Bank intends 1o sither settle on
nel basis, or to realize the assets and 1o sentle the liabilities, simultaneousty.,

Borrowing [ Deposits and their cost

Borrowing { deposits are initially recorded ar the emount of proceeds received, Mark-up accrued on

deposits is recognized separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account
&n a time proportion basis.

Dividend distribution and appropriations

Bonus dividend, cash dividend and other appropriations {except for the approprations required by
law], declared  approved subsequent ta balance sheet date are considered as non-adjusting event and

are nof recorded in financial statements ol the current vear. These are recognized in the period in which
ihese are declared [ approved

Acorptances

Acceplances comprise of undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The
Bank expecls most acceptances to be shmultineously settled with the relmbumsement from the
custairiers. Acceptances are accounteéd for as on-balance sheet ransections.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earning is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss atiributable o ordinary sharcholders of the Bank by the weizhted average number of
ordinary shares ouistanding during the year. Dilwied EPS is determined by edjusting the profit or loss
attributable 10 ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any,

Segment reporting

A segment 15a distinguishable component of the Bank that fs engoged in providing preducts or services
{husiness sepment) ar in providing products or services within a particular cconomie environment
yecographical segmentd, which is subject to risks and rewards that gre different from those of other
segrrents. Segmem information 15 presented as per the Bank's functional structure and guidance of the
SBI. The Bank comprises of following maein seginents
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d.21.1

4.21.2

Business segmonts
#)  Corporate finance and eommercial banking

Carporate finance includes syndications aad advances 1o corporate enterprises including depasits
therefrom, Commercial banking includes project financing, export financing, other leadings,
guaraniees and bills of exchange,

bl  Treasury

11 includes fixed income. equily, foreign exchange contracts, lendings to financial institutions and
borrowings.

e} Retail and consumer banking

It includes retail lending and deposits, banking services, private lending and deposits, retail
services offered 1 the ratall cuslomers.

d} Commercial Banking

This includes lending and deposits banking services, private lending and deposits offered 10 the
small and medium enterprises.

Geographical segment
The Bank operates in Pakistan only,

Critical aecounting estimates snd judgements

Fhe preparation of these fingncial stafements is in conformity with approved sccounting sisndards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that afTect
the reported amounis of assets and fabilities and income and expenses. It &lso reguires management 1o
exercise judgement in application of its accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumplions
are bazed on historical experience and various other factors that ere believed o be reasonable under the
cirtumstances, These estimates and mssumptions are reviewed 4n an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recogniged in the period in which the estimate i3 revised, il the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and in fusere periods if the revision affects bath
current and future periods. Significant accounling estimates and areas where judgements were made by
management in the application of accounting policies are as follows:

4} Classilication of investiments

- In classifying investments as "held-for-rading’, the Bank determines the securities which are

acquired with the intention 1o trade by taking advamage of short serm market / interest rate
PO eI LE.

- The investments which have fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunties end the
Bank has the positive intent and abifity to hold them 61l maturity.
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c)

d)

el

The investments which are not classified as ‘held-for-rading' or Tteeld-to-maturity' are
classified as "available-for-sale’,

Valuation and impairment of available-for-sale equity invesimenis

The Bank determines thal ‘wvailable-for-sale’ equity investments are impaired when there has
been & significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates
among other factors, the normel volatility in share price, In addition, the impairment may be
appropriata when there is an evidence of deterioration in the financial health of investee, industry
and sector perlormance, changes in technology and operational and finencing cash Mows.

Provision against non-performing losns and advances and debt securities classified as
investments

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities classified a5 investments 1o assess Aot
of non-performing loans and advances and deb sscuritics and provision required there against on
a regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors in¢luding the delinquency in the
account, financial position of the barrower, and the requirements of the Prodential Regulations
are considered. The Benk also maintains general provision against consumer and small and
medium enterprises advances in accordance with the requirements sst out in Prudential
Regulations of the 3BP, These provisions changs due to changes in reguiremenes,

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently pavable by the Bank, the management looks et
the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on cerain issues in the

past. In making the provision for deferred taxes, estimates of the Bank's fiture taxable profits are
taken into seoount.

Deprecintion, amortisation and revaluation of fixed assets / nif-banking assets / intangible
FELTL ]

The Bank estimates the revalued amount of land and buildings on a regular basis. The estimates
are based on valustions carried out by independent professional valeers and sech valuations are
carried out with sufficien: regulstory 0 that the valuation at the year end is close o their fair
values. In making estimates of the deprecistion / amortisation method and rates, the imanagement

uses the method and rates which refleciz the paitern in which economic benefits are expected Lo
be consumed by the Bark.

The estimates made are reviewed st each financial year end and if there 15 a change in the
expected pattern of consumption of the luture economic benefits embodied in the assets, the

estimates arc changed to reflect the changed pariern. Such s change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimates in sccordance with International Accounting Standard - 8, 'Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’,
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Stalf retirement benefits (inclnding compensated absence)

Lishility is determined on the basiz of actusrial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The sctuarial assumptions used to determine the liability and related éxpense are
disclosed in note 35 and 37 Actuarial sssumptions are entity’s best estimates of the variahles that
will determine the ultimate cost of providing post employment benefits. Changes in these
assimptions in fulure years may effect the liability / asset under these plans in those years.

Impairment of non-Ninancial assets (exeluding deferred tax asset)

MNon-finsncinl assets are subject 1o impairment review if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable, If any such
indication exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset and the impatrment loss,
if any. The recoverable amount of & asset is the higher of its fair vales less costs to sell and [is
value in use. Value in uss is the prescot value of future cash flows frem the asset discounted at a
rate that reflects market interest rates adjusted for risks specific 1o the asser. [f the recoverable
amount of an intangible or tangible asset is less than iis carrving value, an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit and Joss account and the carrying value of the asset is
reduced by the amount of the loss. A reversal of an impairment loss on these assets is recognised

as it arises provided the increased camying value does nol exceed which it would have been had
no impairment loss been recognised

Right 1o use asset and lease lHability

A contract is, of contains a lease if the contract conveys 4 right 10 control the vse of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Bank mainly lesses properties for its

operetions. The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease lisbility ar the lease
cormmencement date.

The right-of-use asset is iniliglly measured at cost, and subseguently at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment tosses, and adjusted for certain emessurements of the lease
fimbility. The right-of-use asset is depreciared wing the straight line method from the
commencement date 1o the earlier of end of the useful 1ife of right-of-use asses or end of the lease
term. The estimated wseful lives of assets are determined oo the same basis oz that for owned
assels. In addition, the right-of-use asset 15 penodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

Defined Benefit plan

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.
Retirement benefits are payable to the members of the schama on the completion of prescribed
qualifying peried of service under the scheme, Contribution is made in accordance with the
actuarial recommendsation. The actuarial valuation is cafried oot annually as at the statement of
financial position date using the "projected unit credit actearisl cost method®. All setuarial gnins
ind losses are recognised in other comprehensive income as they occur. Past service cost
resulting from changes to defined banalit plan i recognised in the profit and loss account.
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6.1

62

6.3

.4

i1 Compensated Absences

The bank uses actuarial valuation for the determination of its compensated absences liability,
This method makes certain assumptions, which iy change, there by effecting the profit and loss

secount of luture period.

kil  Going concern assessment

As fully explained in note 1.3, the management has applied judgement in the assessment of the

Bank to continue & going concern,

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

Mite
In hamd
Local curreney
Foreign currencies
With State Bunk of Pakistan in
Local currency current aceoumnt 6.1
Foreign cwrency current account 6.2
Foreign currency deposit accounts
« Cash reserve accoun .3
- special cash reserve account &4

With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current aceount

National Prize Bonds

2023 2022
SRR | TR 1| ——

B10,474 647 883
109,066 107.827
019,540 755,710
1371 884 | T Ee
| 88,610 229065
59 473 47,777

L7 04 1,345
1737011 1,446,376
260,872 5323
150 | B0

2 9IE 317 2205218

These actounts are mainizined with the SBP to comply with the surutory cash reserve requirsnenis,

This represants LIS Doller collection account maistained with SBP.

This represents account maintained with SBP to camply with cash reserve requirements againsi foreign

curreney depaosits,

This represents account maintained with SBP 1o comply with the special cash reserve requirgiment
agalnst foreign currency deposits, The return on this aceount is declared by the SBP on a monthly basis
and as al December 31, 2023, it carried mark-ug ranging from 3.39% 1o 4.34% (2022: from (0% 10

3.14%) per enaum,
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B2

8.3

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
[y curvent accounts

Dutside Pakistan
I current accounts

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call / clean money lendings

Repurchase agreement lendings {Reverse Repo)

Less: Provision held against

inatitutions

lending o finaneial

Lendings 10 Financial Instinstions « net of provision

Particulars of lendings

In local currency

Mote

8.2
8.3

B2 & EA

23 2022

e 11113 TR 111 —

270 270

278 2749

1611 544

]|§9'| Bxy

Q14,085 [434,080

L, 107, 344 3339107

2,021,433 6,773,196
{139 08%) (RS

| BEZ, 344 B634, 167

| .BE2 344

: 6,634.107

This includes financing amounting 10 Rs. 139 million that matured on December 31, 2012, Due 1o
default in repayments, full provision has been made against these amounts, Lendings were in local

Gurrency.

Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions {Reverse repal.

Market treasury bills
Pakiztan investment bonds

Market rreasory bills
Pekistan investiment bands

MNote

83.3.1
g3.3.2
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Bank wiven as
collateral
- {Rupees in "(Hk0} S——
D07, 344 - 907,344
206, (00 - 200,000
1,107,344 — 1,107,344
101
Held by Further Taotal
Bank given as
collateral
wwmnn s { R s in HBOY
Q39,107 - Q39107
4,400,000 - 4,400,080
5.339,107 - 3,339,107



§3.1 Murket value of the securities held as collateral is Rs.0.907 billion (2022: Rs.0.939 billion). These carmy
mark-up rate of 22.50% (2022: 15% to 16.65%) per annum, with maturity up to January 02, 2024 (2022;

531

5.4

up 1o Jaruary 03, 20Z3)

Market valug of the gecurities hald az eollateral is s, 0.200 billion (2022: Ra.4.400 billian), These Garry
mark-up rate of 21.00% (2022: 15.00%) per annun, with maturity up to lanusry 02, 2024 (2022 up o

Fanuacy 03, 20239,

Lategory of classilication

Domestic

P | P 2022
Classifie  Provision Classified Provision
Lending held Lending hedd

-{ Rupees in "4}

| 3% 08 139,089 135,089 139 089
135,089 39080 135 089 139,085
— = [
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& INVESTMENTS

9.1  [evesimesis by o 2831 il
ot Pravizian Surple Carrvisg Cosr Provisien Surplus/ Crrrying
Amoriised Ceir  Sar Diminaitian Ve Ameriised Crat . for iminuitica Defciiy Value
mETs sine 5.5
- Mme {Bompess in “0HIj -
Availabile-Tor-sale seoarifies : ‘..-.- <
“Patensl Govenmeml Seasities a3 i 264 405 . 43518 4 355,015 3,070,784 : (90,7 b o
Ordiraary shangs off i unlited company. L pad - - ] 954 - . LLTY
Predarence sharey ofa tisted company X e ] (120 - . 10,000 { Lova . s
Total Invertmeats TSR (152051 TSl sy mnRi M0 1150001 BLTT) e,
23 Inveidments By sezmemis
Federal government seturilas
Pelnuricet ey il - - - ' 1,282,517 - {H7. froad )
Bakistan mwestreal bonds e 44 55 505 . 53614 #8018 I7. 180 205 5 [Fap3 37T 3N
231 &%3 44365 4005 - 3,614 38018 ELT T - 90T JE.0E000 3
Fully paid-em graleeace sShares
Lifed cnmaany ] 101 TH00 110,000 ] - L0000 {700 - F
Fully gaid-up ardinory shares
Urdisied eoempane 5y [ | = . bR 54 . = B5d
MoE peversment dehtsrcurilies.
Lisiad term firsace cenificars - . - x . = . -
Toam! brvesimmenis -5 S — T S . - Y T T T T
521 Investments shves o8 mlloersl | : 833 el o]
soemsscnra{ Rt [ DO fems =
Pederal zovernment sscuritles
Pakiatan Mwsrment Dond 1155 000 3, D000
L

03 Ineermmeis in Pedical Detimment st nelale semuriries which e held by the Bank o eligitle for i garety [ty mquinmests deermeed moer sectim. ¥ the Binking Compenies Didismce,
1943 !

0.4  Pakistan [avasnent Fends [FIES) me for the period of thoee sears, five prars snd ten years, The mess of pendit range betwes 15 500% and B4 80 prer anum (3023: B 1E% 12 17 55% per amum] with msuniies
upin August 02 (HIOE Upio Jene 10304
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2023 2022
MNote -——-——{Rupees in 000}

9.5 Provision for diminotion in value of investments

Opening balsnce 10,000 10,0
Reversal during the vear 3] 4 .
Closing balance L0, (W0 10 G0
051 Particulars of prowvision szainst de bt securties
2023 1022
M Provis inn i EiTT Provision
e o T g e o rming,
imvestmenis imveEs trme mie
{Rupees in "H00) ———
Category of classification
[resrmne % tig
Laoss | 30060 L0, 00 LOLORE R, D00

[0, 0k I 01, 0430 |0 (R0 10000

9.5.2 Provision for diminution in value of investment by type
- available-for-sale securitios

Preference shares of a listed company 98 10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000

9.5.3 Provision for diminution in value of investment by seament
- available-for-sale securities

Fully paid-up preference shares
Preference shares of a listed company 98 10,000 I u,ﬂi{L

9.6 Quality of available for sale securities

Details regarding quality of available for sale (AFS) securities ure as follows:
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E--

9.6.1

%.6.1.

.12

9.6.01.3

9.3

9.8

Amortized Cost
2023 2022
Note ———-{Rupees in "00)——-—
Domestic Securities
Federal government securities
Markel Treasury Bills - 1,880,517
FPakistan Investment Bonds 9.3 44,265 405 27,120,269
44,265 405 29070786
W23 227
Eosi Break Epvadie Cosd Breal Lp valee
Eharea Male —_— [Rugsers i T
Unlisfed Compmmnics

Mational lrstivtionsl Fectitption Techilogies
: : o
(Prevuie ) Lisnited (MIFT) €y &4 B8, 540 A 13,945

Prer shase Dreakup valoe of NIFT B R, 11067 (2022 s, 0 14y
Hating Cosd

Preferonee shames

Listed Company ELB Lisined Liwaied 00 £, i
Chenab [imied

Ordinary shares of an unlisted company - a related party

This represents investment in 1,416,985 ordinary shares (2022: 1,416,985 srdinary shares) of
Rs. 1 each of National Institutional Facilitation Technalogies (Private) Limited {NIFT). The
Bank's investment in NIFT is cerried at cost (less impairement losses, if any) and is not
accounted under the equity method of accounting, s the Bank does not have significant
influgnece over the entity, However, one employee of the Bank is a Director of NIFT. The Bank
has 5.67% (2022: 5.67%) steke in NIFT

Freference shares of a listed company

This represents |, 000,000 (2022: | 000,000} cumulative redeemeble preference shares of a listed

company (Chenab Limited) having face value of Rs. 10 each, carrving dividend entitlement at
0.25% perannom on the face value,

Market value of these shares at December 31, 2023 was not available as these shares are not

being currently traded. Given the Fact that the Company iz & defaulier, the Bank has made full
provision against these preference shares.
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110, ADVANCES

MNole
[.oans, cash credits, nmning
finances, etc, in Pakistan (0.2
Advances - gross
Provision against non-performing
pdvarces
- specific 10.3
= general 10.3

Advances - net of provisions

10,1 Particulers of advances - gross

In lacal currency
In foreign cumencies

Performing Non Perform ing Tatal
2023 022 2023 2012 2023 1022
(Rupees in 000} L
8,274,718 11045937 2,919,888 2,734,650 11,194 606 13,780,587
B274,718 11045937 2919 888 2,734,650 11,194,606 13,780,587
. s (Z730,086)|| (2,500424)| (2,750096)(| (2.590,424)
(224211 {128,007} - . (224,210) (128,007
(224 210) {128,007) (2,750,006) (2500.420)  [2974306) (2,718431)
Ehﬂiﬂ.ﬁﬂﬂ 1.817,.950 e 144,226 2,220,300 11,062,156
2023 1021
emnmses (R pEEE (0 (M)
11,194 606 13,780,587

11, 104 606 13780587

10,2 Advances include Rs, 2,920 million (2022: Rs. 2,734 million) which have been placed under the non-performing status as detailed below:
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103

13,1

Category of classification
Domestie o

=: Other Asseis Especially Mentioned
Substandard
Doubiful
Loss

Particalars of provision against advances

Nuote
Crpening balance
Cherge for the year
Reversals
Mei charge for the year 31
Closing balamee

Farticulars of provision againat advanees

In local currency
In forelgn currenci=s

2013 1022
Mon Provision Non Provision
performing performing
Ioans loans
- (Rupees in "000}
25,138 1308 42,472 1,383
103,930 18,356 13,298 1,556
247641 110,061 101,345 8,050
2,343 178 2,620,332 2.571.535 2,571,535
2,919,888 2,730,036 2,734,650 ilﬁﬁlﬂ.ﬂf?d
2023 2013
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in "IN -

2,590,424 128,007 2718431 2,681,152 30,560 2711712
233,439 100,000 333,459 42,884 100,000 152 584
{75,767) {3,797) (T7.564) (183,612 (2,553) (185,165
159,672 96,203 255,875 (%0, 728) 97,447 6,720

2. T50 05 224 210 2,574,304 2590424 125,007 2718431

2023 2022
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in "000)
2,750,096 224,210 2,574,306 2500424 128,007 2,718,431
2,750,096 224,210 I,FII‘I#&DE 2590424 128,007 2718431
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10.3.2  In accordance with BSD Circular Mo, | of 21 October 2011 {ssusd by the SBP, the Bank has

10:3.3

0.4

11.

availed the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) of certain collaterals against non-performing loans.
Had this benefit of FSY not been taken by the bank, specific provision sgainst non-performing
edvances would have been higher by Rs. 91,258 million {2022: Bs, 47,819 million) and loss before
1ax would have been higher by Rs. 01 258 million (2027 R, 47,819 million), This amount of Bs.
39,298 millian (2022: Fs 45774 million) is not available for diseibution of cash and stock
dividend to the shareholders and honus (o employees.

Generel provision represents provision against consumer and small entities loans. General
provision on Consumer |oans are maintained al an amownt equal 1o 1% of the Nully secured
perfarming porifolio and 4% of the unsecured performing portfolio as required by the Prudential
Regulations issued by the SBP. Moreover, general provsion on SE loans are maintained at an

amaunt equal to 1% of unsecured SE loans as per IHESMEFD Circular No. 09 dated December
22,2017,

Details of loan write off of Re. S00,000/- and g bove

In terms of sub-section (3) of Sectlon 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
statement in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of Fupees five humdred
thousand ar above aliowed 10 a personis) during the vear ended Decomber 31, 2023 has not been
given as theve were no write-offs of individual amount exceelding Rs. 500,000/ during the vear,

2023 2622
——-——(Rupees in "0 -
FIXED ASSETS
Property and equipment 1.1 756,704 610,472

730,794 G10.472
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11.1

Property asd equipsient

=
At Jumwry O, 2023
Cost
Accussnlated depreciabion
Met hoak value

Year emilled December 31, 2023
Opruing mét book walis
Additiona
Depreciation charge
Drisposals.

- Cost
- Acuerelated deprecistion

Fewaluton splus
- ool
= Accumulited dexmeciation

Closmg oot bock value
Al December 31, 2023

ot

Apcisniufated depreciabion

Hel book value

HRale of depreciation { perotntage)

1033
Elecirice,
Lingdoki Tyl eveliiand et ] bense ol Right-of
iand premises on et R Wihitles - Total
Leasehald land 3  iaiermgcom O
Ui pineet " 5
(Repees in 00}
1,567 HROATH 71,796 33493 1,39 61368 G037 1,591,753
f (108, 735] (64,973) (314,336) {10,545 {53507] (416,839

91,567 272,119 BT 26157 12,546 e T L0472

B, 567 72119 6ETD 24,157 12,546 1306 jResdd 10,472

: : 11,741 43444 15,617 10,559 11,135 154,058

= (15,572) {3328} {(AER0a) (3,8358) (5,453) Li14. 461 (174,373
3 ; 2061} (1378} 145,782 m.zlsu!

. : 2,051 L3176 40,74 44,212
59,120 127,517 z = : 186,437 |

39,120 147,517 = - 3 - - 186,637

130,587 204 D 15,408 £ 24707 30,408 94,722 56754

F0.687 58375 B85 194,573 19,509 9368 595,230 | 68,259

z [134,311) ] [14£,863) {SEE0) (500508 i1,111.434)

SET 404,064 15,496 41710 24,71 39408 94,731 756,774

% I T 5 SN, SN . M| .5 ..
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.-'?" Jurmuary B1. 20T
i
Accumulaied degrecission
Blet boak value

Year ended December 31, 3022
Op=aing net book value
duddickms
Diprecaarin charge
Disposals
= Cost

- Accomulaied depreciatica

Bevaluation surplus
= Coil
- Accumulaed deprezianicn

Choemp net hook vales

Al December 31, 2022
Cist
Accumulared depeteiation
Wt book value

Hate af deprecintion {percentage)

iz

Elesiricsl,
Buildieg foffice -,
LesseBald d Furnilmre and wlfice mnd Lemse held Highi-of
Tund L.::r.h-:ld :d fixture cimm puier Hadchey Improvement use pyweks L
i ri@ipmert
(Rupees in “000) b
91,567 Ja0. 838 3,151 354344 14,250 &.010 551,640 La 410
- (i 417} i tifi, B9y {305 4745 jLrd] [0, ey B34 T8
91567 ]:!E-MI: fi 857 33470 5143 7 T3 251 117
G167 286,441 6437 F3ATD 243 9.704 333,251 G5 117
= - 2,10 [a54] o2 7,359 T2 1ZE 14 AT
{14,553 [E,264) (25.954) {2,539 [3,204) (117421} (1115
: [+,55) T (7,126
f L35 1047 i 128
Bl.s57 i'_?i'.l]'ﬂ =8 K] E_ET 12.5ef ]aﬁ_ﬁj IR ol ﬁlﬂﬁ“
Qf_S&7 B0ESE 14,756 341493 23,897 67 5649 &0 TT] 1,591,752
: (OETSE) (edean (326336 (10,945} (SLH07] _ [4]6ESY (961780
ST amlls 8D 15T W e _jeesss I
2 - 0% LY - 40 Al 1 1 T
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|

(LI The leasehedd tand and beiings of the Bank were revalued o Deosmbar 11, 202] by = indspenders valuer Arsem Privice Limited on the marcker valus basis afler making indepesndem man
inquiries from hocal citate agenss ¢ readsony in the visinity 10 estebish the pressnt meke value, The revalutions of the above esews were lest ourind owt in 2004, 2008, 201 i, 304, 3018, 2018 and

1112 The el of feesd sie valoes tesed on the reveluscons expluned in nei FL1 I above xre as fellows:

113

1L14

2071 The pewsiting srepis has been credited /e reveluntion surplus assoont, ned of related e offect

Hud the led and baldings not been rewlued, 1ol terving amoonds es ot Decenlker 31, 2025 weoiald hawe been as folows: [2f cost e socummulaied deprecialion T

-
Lemrebold lnnd
Buddings on Leasehadd Inod

L

Lewschedd lund
Duidings on Lzsehodd land

The oot of fafly deprezissed assets that are still in wse e as follows

Befdieg imorovemanty

Fumiture and fhcures

Elezirical, adfics and compuier saupmeni
Wehicks

Bummarired detals of the valuatis of properiies across the countre:

Locatkem of properticy

Metdi Tower EEachi

Hew Town, Karmdi
Soideur

Faisafabad

FB. Area Earachi
Giulshan-e-lobal, Kieschi
PECHE. Earachi
Mipurkhas ( [dla Prepsmd®
Eohat (1dle Prooeriy]
Nrreabshal (Tdle Prooemy)®
Begioral Cffice Lahore

Mo

H=1=5
Ih1e
LELT
ILLE

, § g ] 1
nee s npaes in W0}
3am 3287
1,487 [R50
Farzed sale value
[Rupsss i D00}
1320
125231
L
475 13064
61,670 55,34
PP ETS HLEX
1,972 11424
Al 786 =210
Dviginal cost __ Revalsed asvount (net of deprogistion) cost”
Land Building Total Land Bulldinz: Toul
wese (Fmpee o 'K0) {Riepees i 000
. S 5167 4 £31,760 1,760
- 1548 1548 - L1403 (1,803
- 1057 1:m7 - 11,470 IaM
- 4473 4,873 - 18360 IE.360
- 815 815 - 40,280 &0.250
. 1513 1322 = 10,734 21736
3000 e 750 [ 300 17,255 14T 545
152 i 162 151 . 182
- i 708 - = -
135 - 125 (1] . 124
> GO,020: L 3 128500 LR N
FRT31 AL Li20 L305ET bt o adeill
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N R

* At ooat due o the resmns g below, Amounis are rolcormidesed 1o Be material,

T prapery is moer Erganion & varives enmpdalit were lodged against Be Bank o Sindh Buwskieg Cemrol Asthorsy (SBCA) oo the pounds thay the propemy §s Being used for commercial
prEpose comimary b it legad siabes ae w cesidentind progemy and that floor plass of the firs ard sscond Sleor of this propaTy sre ol spprevsd by the relevant authonbies. SBCA issond notics 10 1he
Bank for ilegal carsiruciion & 16 demoheh i The Bank fled o See for Permanem [nganction before a Civil Judgn agizast the SBCA while wforming t touft thal il has mken feeeszaary action for
the regulirizorion and beinging the corstreetion exsting o the Bank's property wilkes e paramster ftipeluled by SHBCA, Howevar, since (he netficslicn for repalarization of the constraction hag
been suspended consequent be the Constinetionsd Petition oc D-4087012 pending lrefore High Cowrt of Sindk, Karschi, the Bmk bocame a paty o the Constitutional Pestion wed moved & fine-fie
application before TV-Senior Civl Judge. Consequenly, Se procesdings of the e pending befoes [¥-Senior Civil Tudge were sdjouitied sie-die till the décen of Constituiiosal Pelitien no. D

_F#EIJ“_DLI peading before the High Court of Sedh, The Baak's dealing legal coumss! kas condirmed that ihe Beak vt Beshy o suffer any loss o the casx

Tha propery was svarded 1o the Bank by the Goverament of Pakisan for ihe purpose of camying oui Béak's bunress. The Sezk bos not siilzed s property and i & Therefors, the Bank's
eanagement had deaided to sell the propery sfier abtainirg prior approval Erom the Dovemment of Palczitin. Hirsexer, the Bank has net bom bl o geeure the approval of Cwvernment of Pakistan
‘tecauze of Supreme Court of Pakistem's restraining onder (n so0 moto cass na [R2011 whach prokilnts e saletresfeefmutation of siete lands 1l father order. Sup moto cose was mitisted by the
Supreme Crourt of Pakistsn s reilliple cases wems seporied in which peeemmen propemmies wefe being illegally tmrafemred in fade deals. Since the property is idle, the Bank has obtained extenson o
time pezifiad (n Section [0 -of the Buslieg Corspanna Cidirance, 1962 for holding of idle properiiss fram the Staie Bank of Pakistan [SEP) and the SBPF has aliwad e Hash 10 reain the prope y
it birpuriches S the order in Sua molo cose ao, 152010 remains effective.

This repressst iemporarily &l propemy for whizh caension in time specified & Seciion 10 of the Dankcng Companies Ordimance, 15682 fior holding of sach propetics kas boen oleained by the Benk
fross Siae Bank of Pakisan [5BF). Koha peogemy hag heen writen doom bo book value of B, | owing 1o diflicultes Bced by the Bank in disporing o7 e sk propemy s the SBP has allowed
e Bank to retain the property il the situstion 15 favournbie for sade of this ropemy,

The land o Mawsbshah wes granted w the Bank for tie ssesinection of bank builing on tha dirsctives of Chief Misister Sirdh. Howsver, o prsen {the Parny) flegally rased claim oa the propary
und {llegally transfrred the property to two persons. This was contended by the Bask i the Court ol 15t Senior Civil Fodge, Mawabshal and e siit wag decreed i Bank's fovour, The Party filed
appeals up I Suprere Coue level e o the sppeas ame damissed, After dismissal of eppeel from the Supreme Ceort, te Bank's gecrer anvined finaliny. Conseqoently, execation spphization wis
Tlied by the Baak m sxscute the Jodgment Deeree reqaising sevenis authonizies in demarcate the (=d and issie litke dotuments in the name of fie Bick. Mo desisien kis yot e issued in respect of
e eeoation e lication o dabe and the Bank does not hive possssson of thif pragety. The Bank v still pursaing this samer snd (he Banks brasyer resporeisle for the concermed matier i§ of the
vimm that the Bank's interest i sufFiciently sl with no. likelihood of sny epparent loss. The propery is moorded ui B (25,000 being e amoani of bease money deposived with Mumicipal
Commines, Mawahsah Accordingly, dot 1o the above rewseni, and i wiew of the uncerimnty stilll veohved, the Bank has not revalued ihe above lend.

Tiedmils of dispadals of Gued sseen duries the year Csi Actumulabel  Carrying value  Sale procteds Mode of Farticulars of
denreciation ideansl buvers
[Pt peen Fn 00T
Fuarniture ansd fixtero
Bema baving ook vabes of less than
3. 230,000 ar coar of less - - . =
B | 00000 . F a .
MiseTlansoes iBms 1061 2,041 : 236 Austdsn [ Vmnous
Jentaren
Floctricad, afTice s comgater
5Ll g BE
[t having book valuc of i Bam - = - - Auction | Vinious
s 250,000 o cost of less + - - - qandaban
Bea. B, D00 000 - ' = -
bdiscelinnenus iems 13% 1,1% . 151 Mustion Visioos
quOCaiiOT
LA Y5 : il
Page - M)



12.

121

122

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Intangihie assets

Capital work-in-progress

software up gradation {(advance to the consultant)

At 1 January

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December
Opening net book value
Additions
Amaortisalion charge
Closing net book value

AL 3 December
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impeinment
Net book value

Rate of amortisation (percentage)
Liseful life in years
OTHER ASSETS

Income/ mark-up acerued in local currency
Advances, deposits and other prepayments
Branch adjustment account

ATM Settlement Aocount

Receivable against encashment aof
Government Securites

Stationary & stamps in hand

Acceplances

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction
of claims

Cithers

Provizion against other assets
Chther assets (net of provizion)

Page - 31

2023 2022
Mote (Rupees in "000)
121 18,118 20,160
[2.2 27447 26,094

45 565 46,254

_IB.118 20,160
176,981 160,029
ER) (127,165)
26,0494 32,864
26,0594 12,864
| 7,90% 16,952
29 (16.,554) (23,722
27448 26,094
| 94 B8 176,981
(167 442 (150,887}
27 447 24 (0%
| D-33%
3-10
13.1 2,874 460 081,877
3.2 162,016 145,088
31,360 =
45,515 30936
9,505,200 444
10,231 6,403
8,009 6,434
13.3 - 4
B.705 6. 506G
12,645,587 1,177,828
13.4 (<18,169) (48,169)
12597418 | .093.550



131,

13.2

13.3.1

134

2023 2012
MNote (Rupees in "000)

Dreficit on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired
in salisfaction of claims

12,567 418 IILEEJ'.!'JS'J

Includes markup receivable of Rs. 90.28 million (2022: Rs. 34.63 million) due from the State
Bank of Pakistan on subsidized loans.

This includes Rs. 123.7 million bid amount deposited by the Bank with the Buanking court for
the purchase of a morigaged property located in Karachi in an auctioq proceeding. The Bank
pracesded to purchase the property during an auction conducted by the Ba nking Court as pant
of the recovery suit against the property's owner {judgement debior or 1) who had defaulied
on a laan from the Bank amounting to Rs, 43.205 million. Consequent to the deposit of the bid
money by the Bank which was based on & valuation submitted by 1D & spproved by the Court
& subsequent conduct valuation of the property an the strength of that valsation, the judgment
debtor filed objection againgt the confirmation of the sale in favar of the Bank on the ground
that the property is valued at Rs. 216,92 million whereas it is being sold at previous valuation
which is lower. Accordingly, Banking Court through the order dated 24 December 2018,
declined 10 confirm the sale in favor of Bank and directed 1o return the bid amount Rs, 123.7
million Lo the Bank and further directed [or fresh veluation of the mortgagad property at the
cost of judgment debtor. The Bank has filed an appeal in the Sindh High Court against the
order of the Banking Court and contends that the maorfgaged property be handed over 10 the
Bank. The dealing counsel is hopeful that the outcome of the case will be in Rank’s faver. The
management in consultation with the Bank's lawyer is hopeful of & positive outcome.

Market value of non-banking assets wsequired in
satisfacticn of claims 13.3.1

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening balance - 20,172
Additions - =
Disposals - (20,172)
Depreciation 29 . -
Impairment on non-banking assets 29 - -

Provision held against other assets

Other 48,169 48.1
13.4.1 AEIee AR 169
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2023 2022
Note ———(Rupees in "M j=mne--
13.4.1 Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance 48,169 48,169
Charge for the year 2 ‘[
Amaount Writien off = =
Clasing balance 44, 1as 48,169

14. CONTINGENT ASSETS

There were no contingent assets of the Bank as at December 31, 2023 (2022 Nil). However
several recovery suits have been filed by the Bank.

15.  BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 145,620 135,654
Outside Pakistan 3.58] 63146
149.177 141,970
16. BORROWINGS
Seeured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
Under Refinance Wazes and Salarics Scheme 16:2 850,000 %63,000
Under Export Refinance Scheme s 24,203
Undar Small Enterprise Financing and Credit
Guarantee Facility for Special persons 738 1,077
Under Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 16.3 554,263 570,719
Uinder revised Financing Scheme for '
Renewable Energy | 6.4 12,455 24,910
Refinance for Solar Enerpy 18279 is4
Under Refinance & Credit Guarantee Scheme
for Women Entreprencurs in underserved areas 1 6.5 37,083 34,305
1 472 818 1,633,728
Repurchase agreement borrowing 6.6 31, 130,000 12,000,000

Pakistan Morigage Refinance Company

16.1 Particulars of borrowings in respect of currencies

fiv Becal Currency 32622818 |3.653,728
[ foreign currencies

—a22 818  IG65ITIR
Page - 33




162

6.3

16.4

16.5

16,6

17.

The Bank has entered into arrangement for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBPY for
extending Refinance Wages and Salaries Scheme to eustomers, As per the arrangement, the Bank
has granted SBP the right 1o recover the cutstanding amount from the Bank on the date of the
maturity of the finance by directly debiting the current account maintaingd by the Bank with
SBP, This carries mark-up rate ranging from 2 1o 3% per annum (2023: 3% 1o 3% per annum),

The Bank has entered into arrangement for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for
extending Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 1o customers. As per the arrangement, the
Bank has granted SBP the right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank at the date of

maturity of the {inance by directly debiting the current sccount maintained by the Bank with
SBP. This carries mark-up rate of 3%, per annum.

The Bank has entered into arrangement for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
under Revised SBP Financing Scheme for Renewsable Energy. As per the arrangement, the Bank
haz granied SBP the right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank at the date of
maturity of the finance by directly debiting the current account maintained by the Bank with

SBP. This carries mark-up rate of 3% per annum (2022: 3% per annum). These borrowings are
repayable up to November 20235,

These borrowings have been obtained from SBP under the refinance and credit guarantee scheme
for wamen entreprencurs in underserved arcas for setting up of new unils and meet credit needs
of business. The borrowings are repayable in equal quanerly installments afier grace period if
any and does not carry any interest. The rate of markup for end users under the facility is up to

5% per annum. The loss, il any, includes risk coverage of 60% of the outstanding principal by
the State Bank of Pakistan.

This carries mark-up rate upte 22,1 1% per annum (2022 16.17% per annum }. The borrowing is
repwyable up to Janvary 01, 2024 (3022 Mawch 3. 2023). Thiz borrowing is secured agains
government securities having carrying value of Rs.31.150 Billion (2022: Rs.12 Billion).

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2023 2023
In bl In foe hgn Tisnl i bsi=al I forw bz Toial
CRUTENCY EUrrRney EHET Y CUFTEney
(R upees w004
Cemdamieny o zic =
Clmeis Gorse - nan- pemuere e SR (R &1.537 il 00, 533 i 46%, 305 g2 | I 3385507
Bavirgs deposis 16, 37T B0 ARELAIS 15, 707,373 17, A6 d8% 406,025 | | 1%, 103,400
Tari deposis et BT - T4 208 £ B5E 175 | &a05res
Cihess | _A66.270 B 487,141 738,743 | 5 L kv
FS21.281 A51.03) FL073.283  FLS0E.RAR 456,047 1,054,890
Fisancisil los tigistisis e
Cmend BEoauils « Non-remueerathe IO IHE - b, 187 i, 6= |. 11,605
Savings depasiis 137 Rié - 137, B0 36, TED 16,788
Term deposis 111 ik = | P10 1, Dol &1, 00k
il : - = - = | .
TEGAE = 4 = E- M [T ] - | GrR i3
MLERL 350 LA 31,332,331 TR IR 456067 F1|6d. 550
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17.2

148

1%,

Compaosition of denosits 2023 2022

[ Rupees in "0H0)-——-
= Individuals 12712 T4k 11,656,580
= Giovernment { Fedaral and Provincial) 13,690,745 16,351,919
= Public Sector Entities 368003 R
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 259 048 18433
- Private Sector 410,785 3486960

31 232,330 33,1 '5-1!339

Deposits includes eligible deposits of Rs. 13,257 million (2022: Rs, 13,467 million) which are

covered under deposit protection mechanism as required by the Deposit Protection Corporation
circular no 4 of 2018,

DEFEHHED TAX LIARILITY { (ASSET)

lBaline s al’ Fecognissd Eecognisel  Hakioce g5 5l Kecogniged Hrcopmsed  Balunee as st

dapusiy 01, i prufit snil nwther Derember 51, i pnlis anl insther  Deaember 3,
il k] lovk wtcommnt  cusspae henpiv e o2z Med acedunt  compre e s by ZELE
incie el

e ddos Hlde T Ble | de mpray
il e foes on:

= {Rluprees i 000}

Leziex imhiiy-mer of RO LA (70735 123, 204) - {30,277} {16, 4Ty 43k, 724)
Burphs on revabason af
Bardcdaygea 105311 [EREEH 1,578 151,337 [EE81) T2, 733 Lal e
- Birm sy (LSRR - [ g §24.25%7) - 0 Bk ]
Hemgimeseil Kas un
delined beachl oblgmons —— - = [kt i BEL .= I 1,754 1K, 7 XN
Puet deTerwil x liabdlin 231204 (28,1 58) (214} 4234 L31.EEE) IS 177 &0
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency 2,753,843 1,330,455
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in foreign currency Bi B
Unearmed commissicn and income 5,518 B.0RG
Accrued expenses 193,511 125,433
Payable against purchase of fixed asscis 1,940 13,554
Acceplances 8,009 6,434
Branch adjustment account - 93,474
Payable to staff retirement defined beneli plans 36 30,101 36,0640
FPayable under o defined benelir scheme 37 7. 140 7.140
Provision for employees' compensated absences iR 635,720 66,377
Taxation Payment less provision 12,424 48 246
Provident fund pavable o the members 19.1 4. B02 5,669
Staft Welfurs Fund 742 782
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 34,087 106,087
Benevolent fund balance (being refunded to the
employees) | 958 |, G5R
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 192 218,425 264,582
Payable against collection and withholding rax 3513 73594
Others 34,459 13,051

—38al 356 _ 2154863
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19.]1 This represents the provident fund balance payable 10 the members of the Frovident Fund. The Fund was

discontinued in a previous yeur and the balance in its records wers transfecred to the Bank for onwards
serthamant 14 the mermbers,

This represents the liability recognised against right of use assets, The liability balance has been discounted at
waighted average rate of 13.5% (2022: 13.23%) per nnnum. Other relevant detsils are as Fellows:

2023 i .
Mole -[Rupeds in D00~
Lease linbility agaisnt right-of-use gsset
Lease tiability as at January 01, e, 582 262,151
Aceretion of interest 23 53,926 42 6240
Payment of lease lmbility during the vear {30053} {40, 1867
Lease liability as ar December 31, 238425 264,582
December 31, 2003
Minimum Financial Princigal

bease charges for o tstnnding
payments  Tuture periods
-{Rupees in D00}

Farficulars
Mot latar than one vear 30,053 10,274 19,779
Later than ong vear and upto five vears 272,586 B 665 183,921
Ower five years 64204 20 555G 34,725
Bﬁﬁi 233 |'-'-‘= Ejﬂﬂ 238425
I'm;rﬂ-:.r Sl M2
Adlimimn s Finaneial Frincigal
lewse charges For outstanding
payments  future periods
s——————r=ema{ Rupoes kn 00— e
Particulars
Mot [ater than one year T, 154 I8 843 T3,29
Later than ane year and upto five vears 229,145 42,054 IK7,29]
Owver five years . : 5
13214'?'? ‘Jﬂ!ﬂ*‘u" 582
i, SHARE CAPITAL
201 Awuthorised cupital
223 20232 HMIZS o1y
-{Number of sharesje———- e Rupees in '(0iH)mm—a

600000000 gO0.000.000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each £.000.(0) 6. 000,000
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0.2 Isswed, subseribed and paid-up-capital

T3 2022
————{Mamber of sharesps=---—
334,365,000 334, 365000
a5, 046 350 03,046, 250
EEE;H !!‘g!g iiﬁ! !éfhﬂ
0.3 Sharvholders (assceluted undortakings

Federal Sovernment of Pokistan through
Ministry of Fiarae

MCE Bank Limbed

Ha%ib Dank, Limived

Al Bank Limkgd

Muticnnl Bank o Pakistan

Linited Bank Limited

= Fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10V- each 2023 2

{Rupees im "0} ——

Il. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET

Surplus / [Defigit) on revaluation of
= Avinlnble Tor sale securiies
- Property and equipmen

Lema: Deferred 1ax on surplus on revaluation of

= Acvvailable for sale securities
= Propenty and equipsment

Surplus arising on revaluation (net of mx)

Page - 37

3,343,650 3,343,650
- Issued as bonus shares 6504463 650463
=3%'LL %
ZIFZS ZIKEE —
Mumiher of Percvntuge of  Momber of Fercentage of
shires held sharcholiing  shares helll  sharcholfing
o ks
330,088,795 d2.8d 330,088 TR $2.64
23,005,134 338 23,085,324 57k
23,095,324 578 23095324 5.78
7134 027 .94 7,73 027 1454
T EDE 44] 1.93 TR 441 .93
T ERE. 441 .93 T.aYE 441 1,93
b4 [, 250 PO0L00 399,411,250 {0040
20X 102
Mote e {Rupees in 000}———
9.1 L3614 (90, 77X}
21.1 £01,748 120 042
395,362 238 25
i3 36,500 (24,295]
211 69 84 101837
205603 T7.542
B0 650 0,746




I1.1 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 2023

Iz,

221

S22

223

2022

Note  =——eeeee{Ruptes in “000)emeee.

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment as at January 01 320,062 341,763
Revaluation surplus for the year recognized during the year 1.0 186,637
Transferred fo unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the vear - net of defemred tax (BA510 {7,483
Related deferred tux linkility on incremental
depreciation charged during the vear {5,441) {4,953)
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment as a1 December 3| 501,748 129,062
Less: related deferred tax liability on:
- revitluntion as at January 01 101,837 105,213
- revaluation surplus for the vear recognized duning the year 72,788 -
- effect of change in fax rate - 1,578
- ingremental depeeciation charged during the year {5.441) (4,954}
L 6%, 184 101,837
332564 2273
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
CGuaraniees 22.1 L3l E10 1,314,829
Commitrents a0 432,168 457,714
Oiher Contingent Liakilities 223 2R319.473 2,730,473
4!5 a2 180 4 522,016
Guaraniees
Performance Quaranies 1310519 |, 314.82%
L3109 1314829
Commitments
Documentary credits and short-term trodie-velated
Iransattions:
Leners of credil 432,188 467714
432,188 4677 14

Criher Contingent Liahilities

These mainly represent counter claims by borrowers for damages due 1o the legal action and reputational
domages they face while proceedings of recovery and refaled criminal suits on them and other clzims
fgamst the Bank. Management 15 confident 1hat the maters will be decided in the Bank's favour

Accordingly, no provision has beer made in financial statements,

Page - 38



224 Commitments to extend lendings

23,

14,

Zh.

.

The Bank makes commitments to axtand credit in the normal course of its business but Thise being

revocable commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is umilaterally
withdrawn

Tax
Refer notes 32.3 to 32.4 for tax related contingencies.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bank, as a palicy does not enter into derivatives except for forward foreign exchangs contracts and
foreign exchange currency swaps, with Banks to miEnage its net open position, and leuidity,

2013 2022

MARK-UP/ RETURN / INTEREST EARNED reeece—{ Rupees 0 "0 }——--

Loans and advances 2095085 1,535,643
Investineiits 10,148,930 3,594 650
Lending to financial mstitutians 222616 197,975
Balance with treasury Bank 10,283 1,772

— AT Sei0ga

MARK-UFP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits 4,528 810 2077737

Barrowings 5,820,996 2,296,832

Lease lnbilty against righi-of-use asseis 53,5906 42,620
10,403,732 ¢.4I]'.H£_

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 30,643 11
Cradil reluted feos 1,573 3812
Consumer Finance and ¢redit related fees 4,073 4,776
Card related fees 16,487 13,076
Commission on trode 13,168 1.79%
Commission on guarantess 12,333 13215
Commission on bancassurance B53 1,371
Crhers 2774 2 R12
B1.929 59,97
(LOSS)  GAIN ON SECURITIES

Healiscd

Federal Government sscuritics {Z71) | OE7

(277} 1,017
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OTHER INCOME

Giain on sale of Nxed assers-net
Tender fee received

Recovered from employees against
unserved nofice period

Chihers

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Froperty expense
Rent & raxes
Insurance (including deposit protection)
Litilities cost
Security {including guards)
Repair & maintenance
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Drepreciation on owned fixed assets
Impairment on Non-banking assets
Depeeciation on Non-hanking assets

Information technology expenses
Software mainienance
Hardware maintenance
Depreciation { IT related)
Amoriization

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees and allowances
Legal & professional charges
Outsourced services costs
Travelling & conveyance
NIFT clearing charges
Depreciation

Training & development
Postage & courier charges
Communication

Stationery & printing
Marketing, advertisement & publicit ¥
Enertainment

Membership and subscriptions

Auditors Remuneration
Chhers

Page- 44

Naote

29.1

1.1

1.1
13.3.1
13.3,1

11.1
i Jbv)

19

292

2023 2022
v Rupees in "0 )-—-—o
397 T
307 038
1,358 1,260
b 10
2.064 28RS
794,240 550,693
55,173 38,068
40,386 38.251
81,391 65,433
60,008 40,638
41,414 27.824
124,461 117,431
21,025 17,533
423 858 354,180
51,718 17.547
62,116 47,192
32,370 23,968
16,554 I
152,758 122,429
2,163 [,997
18,269 14,052
£234 27,444
12,808 8,692
6, 1 G 6408
7.052 5,197
563 42
5,980 8,869
49 583 41,968
21,820 16,236
3,804 5,550
10,639 7.203
2,899 2,425
11,000 11,000
17,075 20,440
175,049 177.523
| 545,058 1,204 825




2023 2022
Note  —sweee=c{Rupees in "0 }-——--—
291 Total compensation expense
Managerial remuneration 733,765 50,562
Charge for defined benefit plan 29.1.1 38,679 22,447
Conveyance 15,472 12,426
Others 5,374 7.258
_794.350 550,693

20.1.1 Charge/ (reversal) for defined henefit plan - net

This represents provision for pension amounting 1o Rs. 6.574 million {2022; Rs, .70 million],
charges for gratuity amounting to Rs, 19 882 million (2022: Rs. 16.482 million) and charge for

compensated abscnces amounting 10 Rx. 12,223 million (2022: reversal of s {0.735)
mullicn).

297 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 10,00 IRERRTAN]
Fee for ather statutory certifications B0 600
Out-of-pocket expenses 404 400
1000 L1000
3. OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by the SBP 1,234 1311
L "]
3l PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET
Provizion apgainst advances - net 255,875 6,720
Provision against off balance sheet obligations {72,000} -

Reversal of provizion against diminution in
value el investments

Reversal of provision againat defined benefit plan (20,590)
Provision against other assets .
Oiher provisions

=-m =::m-_=
3L TAXATION

Current tax 157,076 71,644
Prior year tax - -
Deferred tax 18 (21,838} (28,157}

135,189 431,487
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3zl

2.2

323

324

Reconciliation of tax charge 1o the accounting income iz as Fallows:

Accounting prafit before tax for the vear 457,354 104,871
Taxable liability / (asset) at 399 (2022 39%4) | 78,368 40,900
Deferred tax asset for the year not recognized 261,836 205,940
eferred tax asset not recognized earlier (31630100 168,220
Permanent difference 12,515 1311
Oithers (70.074) 36473

—— L0 43.4R7

Income tax return for the tax year 2024 {financial year ended Décember 31, 2023) has not been
filed, as the date for filing would be due on September 2024,

While finalizing the assessments for tax vears from 1997 1o 2000 and from 2004 to 2008
(financial years ended from 31 December 1996 to 31 December 1999 and from 31 December
2003 1o 31 December 2007 respectively), the tax authorities, from time 1o time, made certain
disallowances of postro account balances written off, apportionment of expenses, interest

suspended etc., against whick appeals were filed by the Bank at the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR),

The ATIR vide its order dated 31 May 2012 decided all the matters (except disallowance of
written off of nostro bulances, interest suspended and apportionment of expenses) for tax years
from 2004 to 2008 in favor of the Bank against which CIR had filed an appeal in the Sindh
High Court (SHC) which is pending for hearing, Further, the matier of nusiro balances writien
off was remanded back by ATIR o the CIR whercas the matter of appartionment of EXpENEes
and interest suspension have been disallowed against which the Bank has filed an appeal in
SHC, which is pending adjudication. Tax amount involved s Rs. 10.769 million. The
management is confident that the decision in appeals {ineluding those filed by CIR as
explained above) would be in its favour, However, for sbundant caution, provision of
aforesaid amount is being maintained by the Bank.

The Income Tox department has issued orders under sections 161 and 208, raising demands
due 1o the non-deduction of tax on profit payments on certain deposits for the tax vears 2014,
2015, 2016, and 2017, respectively. In accordance with prudent accounting practices,
provisions have been established for the wax years for which decisions are pending,
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2023 2022
Note  —-—- —{Rupees in '000)——emme-.
335 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
33.1  Basic earnings per share
Prafit alter taxation 322165 61384
u= -—~[Number) =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 399,411 390411
------ {Rupees)--=mese-
Basic earnings per share 0.8] 0,15
33.2  Diluted earnings per share
—eeeeeeee{ Rupees in "000)--—-—
Profit afier taxation — 322 165 L3
e i 11111 11 SSS—
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 359 411 309411
e (RUPES) e
Diluted earnings per share .81 0.15
34, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks f 2928317 2,209,218
Balances with other hanks 7 E.E9] 824
2.930 108 2210047

3.1 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Lease labilities
2023 2022
= {Rupees in 0 —————

Bulence as a1 January (1 264,582 262,130

Total changes from financing cash flows (B0.083) (40, 189)

Oiher Ehang.es 53 0246 42 620

Balance as a1 December 11 213425 264,58
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36,

J6.1

36.2

6.5

e

ETAFF STRENGTH
2023 2022
e (NumbAr)sess e
Permanem 421 427
Temporary / on contraciunl basis il 614
Bank's own staff strenglh at end of the year 482 48 |

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Genersl deseription

The Bank operates an approved pension fund and an approved gratuity fund for its employees as
explained in note 4,11 to these financial statements.

Mumber of employees under the scheme

2023 | F
SRR A Sy P 1 E—
Pension Tund 14 43
Crratuity fund 449 A48

Principal actuarial assumptions

The acluarial valuations were caried oul as al December 31, 2023 using the following significant
assumMpions;

223 2023
CRscount rate | 5.50% [4.50%
Expected rate oF retdrn on plan azsers 13 5085 12.580%%
Expected rate of salary increage 13509 I2.50%
Expecied rate of increase in pension 1500 8,508
Mlortal ity rate (SLIC (2001-05)1 (SLIC (2001-05)1
Rate of emplovee wrnover Light Light
Reconelistion of payalde fodefined bene i o
Mare 2023 2621 2023 011
Fensien  Gratubiy  Pemsdon  Giaiudy Tl
fianil Finind duisd fienndd

s sssn | RLUDPEER i "OE0)

Presem vake: of e fined bene il oblignrsins 1591 53% T 1 &S A0S BS 4TS 250487 FLFREY]

Fud wakes of plii ot CERVBKY  (AWARA] | ITAZU6Y (ARITR]  [ZIOGHE) (D066}

Mel paynhle IhT 2039 2 05T 1390 20051 L inyi]h 45462
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357

16.4.1

J6.A.2

Movement lo pavabls b defined benefit plan

Obligatians at the brginning of the yeir
Cuerrem servioe cos T
[nigsest eigt

= rEgnifiti paid doring the year by the Furd
Benefil payable o culgping memien
Bl maasi TESENT gRE
El-h'-ﬂimtllkﬁﬂiuflh:-m

Mgvement bo fair valoe of plan assees

Faip walue af the begizning of the vear

It wone on plan ek

Bermiits paid durisg e year by the Fund

Achad contribasion by Emplayer

Sepiement payabde from the furd lump mum to menbers
Rz-meascrement gain § {lossy

Fair value ol the md of the year

Mavemenl in sl delined beoefit sbifgafen

Cizeming talunse
Chesps for the year
Mat Contibutian 1 Fund

Re-messrament [gain J boss recognised in OC] derimg the year
Cieciing balanze

Charge for difimed peasfil plins

Cesd recagnised in profi and loss
Service o

[=resest income on plan 15TEL
Erbeieat on defined benefit obligation

Remensnrements recegised in D01 duriap 16 year

Pt {gain) f lom en shigston
Firamcial 2syurmpiions
Expmnence sdjustment
Aczmmnsl (gain}  loss on plin aseE
Teaial ee-mensuremenis rsogniged n 001

Holn it 2923 FLIEE
Persion fund Graminy fuad Pensiono fumd Graluity faed Tulal
. {Rmpeca in "0
220 G55 131058 CIRE] ] 243,140 a0 196
i35 K745 31585 [E - 2t,740 LRB0s
26,838 1,71 10,529 - o 25,357 231
412,338} 3.mi] {9477 15813 (A (LE11%)
(2435) : ; - (3,446) :
3602 (B.805) LLH {9 300) [L250 i14.074) (1141
—lt L il IRGES Sha45 L L T T A L
170,358 oLk | 50307 ). Ta 06,679 0043
14,187 5504 18214 5T 30,721 118
(13,334 mmn {9477 {53 2325 [LEEIE
: 11655 = . 11463 .
{3.AB5) . . . r3.486) :
Lk o — A T A58 jii Za5) 5074 1)
w9 ___lmano _ asase _ ITngos _ JE3G L0096 ____JMST
16,399 23062 b i | 17,307 a5 | CIREY |
i5.E1 B.574 L 1) &, 700 Ll 28,458 1305
- {11,865 . . {11,665} -
ME2 E0.81) (LA ] {15053 wun _ gelsn (1A
TR 26841, T DR |7 N 1 | SS— -+ TS
4135 17,644 5.984 15,510 1170 | #3048
2E 15T 115,524 h (13,214 15,7200| t!ﬂ,% 1 ﬂi.?u':lﬂ
E75] 10,329 £ i |
SRR - . SR °F [ i 2713 A 4,678 AN
S . Sp— | S L300 15218 FLCEY I——— N |
4,053 imn 3617 4] 5385 4500
£13437) 14
(8,503) {5,173 (9RO (1,262} {14,078) (17.0ad)
H2 131 {30434 (3353) L R [ 1.erLH
20554 (T YT T 3 - — ¥ TF 0o137) (L4650
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2023 2
Pension Gratuily Pension Gratalty
Tund el Fund Fanil
e | Bupees in "(HHI}
369  Components of plan assets
Bank balances 8,658 6187 4,859 T.767
Diebt Instruments (T-hills / PIRs) 181,142 43,309 165,437 28,606
ISQISEID 449,586 | ?ﬂiaﬁ'ﬁ 3-5!3 3

3610 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis should be disclosed by varying oné assumption keeping all other assumptions
constant and caleulating the impact ¢n the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the
vinous employee beneflt schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit
obligations as & result of changs in each assumption should be summarised a5 illustrated below:

1% imcrease in discound rae

2023 2022

Pension  Gratoity  Ponsion  Gratoity

funa fund Fuamad Fumd
(Rapees In "000}) (Rupees in 00}

174,731 75,1356 I FLETS A3 16
[% diedrease in digcound raie FALETC TR VR Ed | 25417 67 HI0
I % merease in expected rate of salary invrcase 98447  ®524 193,501 679492
| % decrense in expected mte af saliry mereise [B5H1T 74948 IBO5la  &a3059
[%% incroase In expected mie of pension meresse 05035 = 1 67 =
|%a decrease incapocted rate of pension Noreass 1RO251 - I75,348
36,11 Expected charge for the nexd Anancial year 4 A48 0,384 G570 LE4R2
2023 2oz
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
fund Fusnd fund fuind
36,12 Maturity profile
The weighted average duration of the
obligation (in years) .40 518 858 B.75
Dristribwtion of timing of benefit payments
[lime in years)
1 19,252 1,872 19,350 2.041
a 11 00% 5177 10,477 2,699
3 17,735 7877 [ 6,445 5426
4 3 180 14,681 21,088 10481
5 16,415 0,262 20314 (4,317
fi= 100 bR, AD0 16T 693 43,274 65727
11-15 230,050 - 216,464 -
Pope - 45
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36.14
I 37,

Funding Policy
The Bank has the palicy to make annual contributions 1o the fund based an sciaril report.

Significant risk associated with the staff retirement benefit schemes include:

Asset volatility

Almast all the Fund is in a liquid position with the Bank giving rise to significant
reinvestment risk. There is no equity or corporate bond exposurs, Thus, no equity or
settlement risk.

Changes in bond vields

The valuation for ell retirement benefit is discounted with reference to the bond yields. So,

any increase in Bond yields will lower the Liability and vice versa, but, it will also lower the
Assel values if they are invested in the bonds.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation (espeeially the final salary risk) is the major risk that the retirement
benefit liability carries. In a general economie sense and in a longer view, there is a case that if
bond yields increase, the change in salary inflation generally offiets the gains from the
decrease in discounted gratuity lizbility. Bur viewed with the fect that, asset values will also
decrease; the salary inflation does, as an overall affect, increases the net liability of the Bank.

Further, there is also a risk of pension increases on pension lisbility, however, this is a
controlled risk as annual pension incresses are allosted by the Bank and the Trustees.

Maortality rate

The risk that the actual monality experience is different than the assumed mortality, This
effeci depends on the bencficiaries' service [ age distribution and the benelits.

Withd rawal rate

The risk of higher or lower withdrawl experience than assumed. The final effect could go
either way depending on the beneficiaries’ service ! age distribution and the benefit,

UNFUNDED GRATUITY

The bank used to operate an unfunded pratuity arrangement for its ex-President. The liability
determined in accordance with the terms of the arrangement as at December 31, 2023 was Rs.
T.140 millien (2022: Rs 7,140 million). As the amount is not material in relation 1o the size of
financial statements taken as 8 whole, gctuarial valuation has not been carried out.
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30.1.

EMPLOYEES COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability of the Bank in respect of employees compensated absences is determined based
on actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method. The liability of the
Bank as per the latest actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2023 amounted to Rs.
65720 million (2022: Rs. 66.377 million). Charge for the year in respeet of these absences is
Hs. 12,223 million (reversal Tor the year 2022: Bs. (0.735) million) which s included in nots
28 1o these financial statements. Discount rate of 15.50% (2022: 14.50%) and salary increase
of 13.5% (2022: 12.50%) per annum have been used for the above valuation.

The actuanal valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2023 using the following
significant assumptions:

2023 2022

[h=count raic 5. 50% 14.50m45
Expected Long Term return Mot Applicable Not Applicable
Salary imcrease
First year 13.50% -
Second year and onwards 13.50% 12.50%
Withdrawal before Normal Retirement Ape Light Light
Death in services SLIC SLIC (2001-

(2001-05)- 05301

{1

COMFPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Total Compensation Exponse

2023
Preslidong / [Hreeinry K&
CED Chalrmasm Executive Man - Managemgnt
Execilive Persanned
{Rupses in “H).
Foes and Allowanoes - 155 . 1605 -
Munagerial Remuncratices
il Fimed 16, 5358 = - - 20487
i) Variakle 5513 - - - (LY |
Rent & howse mainienance 9090 . % - 10398
Unilitles 24k] & - = 2044
Medical - . . - 3511
Conveyance = : = = {58
Charge for defined benafit plan . = g - 12,542
(ithers = - : - =+
Teaal 33,628 353 B LGS i3 17
Mumher of persang 1 - . - i)




2022
Acling Directors Ky
Praosident | Choirman Exeeutive Mon- MMamegement
CED Executive Persanmel
(Hupees in )
Fees and Alowances . RS - 1254 ¥
Marageral Remmecrazn
0 Feedt 15,665 : " ) 26,784
i} Varinbie 1,723 - - - Z2E3
Eent & howss marmerance R AT - - - 10,053
tiities 2,330 - - ] 2,678
Medical a - - - 3,266
Cansance . - - - 33n
Charge for defined bensfit pln ] - . = -
Crihers - = - - &, 1032
Toul 35,344 285 - 1,250 51,497
Mumber of persans | - = 11
19.2. The scting Chief Executive was also provided with free use of the Bank's maintained car and
household equipment in accordance with the terms of employment.
39.3. Remuneration paid to Directors for participation in Board and Committee Meetings.
0323
Mezting Fees and Allewances Pald
For Boand Commiciees
Far Beani HE & Itisk, Audit Infrrmation || Tolal Amsut
_ Muaotings || He mume raifon|| Mansgement 0 / o || Technehgy Faid
3eMo, Name ofDirccior Commitiee A e E Committes
{Rapees in )
I Nl Mineeh Agarwal am o . - L] 155
4 M Sabia Schan . s - - g =
3 b Maghmam Almgr ax " - 1] a3
4 et Bushra Esmen Xl 0 - 130 - 40
5 M Sumbod M 1& - 10§ [ - m
o I, Wajshat Rased Khan LIS - 130 IH - o5
] P 15 i 13 1. 960
——— ———
2022
Meeting Fees and Allewances Paid
For Baard Commitines
For Baard R & Rk Audit Inkrmation || Total Amsunl
Meetings | Remuse ratbon|| Manageme ot S Technslsgy Faid
Selo, Name ol Decior Commitiee Commitien Commiite
{Flapees in k)
LT ] T - - L] L
F) B Sabda Sulan . - + - s .
i M Maghmima Abkzgr [21] ] - - i} e, 3
4 M5 Bushea Ersen 1] - - i1 . 315
i s Sumbul Misir 1] . " 1% = e
f b Wajahat Rasd Khan 1l - fi] 102 = Th]
k] 125 130 303 13l 1515
— — Pa—
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40.

40.2

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of traded investments are based on quoted market prices. The fair value of
unquoted cquity securities is determined on the basis of the break-up value of the investee
company. The fair value of unguoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets and fixed
term deposits and borrowings and other liabilities cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for such assets and liabilities and
reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments,

In the opinion of management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities
are not significantly different from their carrying values since they arc short term in nature or
in case of customer advances and deposits are repriced frequently.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these financial statements are

categonsed within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement,

Fair value of financial assets

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Pakistan
Stock Exchange) for identical assets or liahilitics.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. 83 prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices) available at MUFAP ana Reuters page, The fair values of Federal
Government Securities are determined on the basis of rates / prices sourced from Reuters.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (L.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement i categorised:

1033
—_ Feirwabes
Carrying ¢ aocknal valus Level I L.evel T Tewel b Toral
(et i O

Oin habanee shar | Snancial insdrume nes

Wissncisl siawrs mie o wrsd ar Ghis «olas

Tt s 0SS

-Federal Gowemmenn Seoaraicn o e - e 1 = 5 ) - e =211
F man ni i veisa
ol A O ALR

- Bbsams of me ardnsed anepame Wi E = p =
o Garal Gk RS i MRy ks AT - = =+ -
Hekxcan with ouhar Baake LAl v v L
Lancing 10 (s sl @ sl L AEE Jad -
L - f Bk b o] = = =
Sk M- — AL - - 2 &

LT ENEL = - = - -

O hakance 3beed Snencial insdrume nis : 1 r r 1
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40.3

Fairs ]

Fuir valus

Carrymg { notnal ralue Level 1 Laval 2 Lavel % Toial

[Rupses n 050}
o hadanee cheet fnanaisd ine b e min
Fimancial suvety measurnd at Snr valug
Imvewtmanty
-Federml Oovermmant Secizries JASER 5 = JESR0LS - b 15
Fimanchal e i pot maoimmed a8 Bir valus
ISt el
- SRares of an whlirkd eormpsy o 5 =
Cash el Belidesi with. ressery banks AFRIIE
Balinces widh siber teks P z
Leanding o Cnancial nuneamsme AR 0T - B
Advances 1L 083,155 = .
Dvines wischy LISEs e i
-7 T -
DiFbaliste sheel Bsancul mstraee 2y = H H
Non-financial assets carried at revalued amount
1023 2z
Mon Financial asseis carried of revalued minounis {Rupees in 0010
Level ¥ Level 2
Fixod musuots
Property and eguipment {fresbold and leasehodd land) 3A.T3L 565686

Land and Building acquired are valved on a periodic basis using professional valuers, The
valuation 15 based on their assessments of the market value of the assets as explained in note
11.1.1. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be
determined with certainty, Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been
presented in these financial statements.
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1.1

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment detsils with respect to business activities

FProfit & Loss

Met mark-up/returnprofi

Inter segment (expense} / revanae - net

Hon mark-up / returmn / interest mcome
Tatal Incams

Seprend direct expenies

Tnter segment expense allocation
Total expensss

Provisions and write-offs - ngt
Profit / {lozs) before tax

Balwnoe Sheet

Cash & Bank balksnces
[nvesiments
Met inlersagment receivablafpayahle)
Landing to financial instihutions
Advances - performing
- mon-performing net of provision

Oithars

Total Assels

Bormowings
Diepozits & other accounts
Oghers

Totial Liabilities

Equity

Taotal Equity & liabilities

Contingensies and Cemmitments

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Corparate Treasury Retail and Commercial Total
Finance Cansumer Ranking
hanking
== (Rupees bn 000
(2,103,302} 4,703,556 (150 585) {326, 486) 2,074,083
3,573,571 (4356,531) 206,507 483 574 '
#1433 1.757 4,154 - 93,743
1,552,302 354,782 101,458 59,054 2,167,418
(1,357,563} (17.6400] (55,305) {(85,720) (1,347,189)
1,563,260 (904,218) {2158, 580) (A0S 261 .
180,697 {921,819} {313,885) (452,184) (1,547,180}
(163 28%) . . . [163,285)
1,569,914 {567,037} (21417 {333,096) 457,355
1,194,758 1,735,350 - 2550,108
- 443595971 - . 44,359 973
28334, 00] (I8 15T7617) (77,078 (%9.205) .
- 1,B22 344 . - 1,B3.344
6,842,088 - 505426 642,994 £,050,508
57.852 . 6,166 105,574 168,792
9802 279 1,302,715 g2 | 423,557 133595, 737
46,230,978 11,132,765 1,365,841 1,072,020 T0.791,502
1417 456 31,150,004 18,279 37,083 32622 818
31,332,331 . - . 31,332,331
7,787,074 T3 (1,570,172) (2442 087) 3,754,831
o), 556,861 31,150,016 (1,551,803) (1,425,004) &7, T 980
5,604,116 {10,027,251) 2,917,733 4,407,924 3,082,522
46, 230,977 20,032,768 1,365,840 1072921 70,792,502
4,582,188 - * ~ 4,582,180
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FProfit & Loss
Het mark-updretum’profit
Imter segment (expense]) S Tevenue - net

Mom mark-up  return £ infersst income -

Todal Dneome

SEpment direat expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions and write-offs - nat
Frofit / (Joss) before tax

Balance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances
Imvestments
Mot inferspgment receivable/ payahle)
Lending 1o financial institutiens
Advances - performing
- nan-performing met of provision
Dhers
Todul Assels

Bormawings
Drepazits & otler aceounts
Cithers
Tatnl Liabiliites
Equity
Total Equity & Habilities

Contingencies and Commitments

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Corparate Trreasury Retail nnd Commereinl Tutal
Finance Consumer Banking
banking
mrena {Hupees i "000)

(501,382) 1,849 562 (47,601} (T7.827) 1,222,852

1,464,300 (1,430,771 135 080 227,397 2
Th233 17,734 Ei4 - 94 574
1,839,170 6633 03 364~ 14% 570 1,317,726
(962,104) {18.997) {B5,879) {138,070) (1,206,136)

391,278 {31,447 (129,740) {216,096) .
(570,915) (T0,436) (215,619) {349,16%) (1,204,136)
(6,720} - . = {6, 7207
461,535 (33813 (123,256) (199,596} 104,871
Ted 153 1,440,884 2,210,042
- 24,980,969 - - 28 580,964

25,603,181 {25 449,539) (69,574) (B4,068) .
: 6,634,107 - . 6,634,107
Q.304 BOE . 754,788 A58 334 10,917,930
39,384 - 5963 UE.ETE 184,224
1,118,333 395,764 1034619 168,669 L.7R6,38%

}ﬁﬂﬁdgﬁﬁ II£MIII4 784,795 lﬁlélj S0,675 659

1,585,009 12,000,000 13,514 54,304 13,653,725
32,164,330 2 = - 32,164,330
6,563,380 72,193 (1,635,710} {2,648,802) 2,331,064
40,313,619 12,072,199 (1,622,196} (2,504,497T) 48,169,126
{3,476,135) {70,014) 2415805 1,634,877 2,504,533
i B37 484 12,002,185 793,609 1040380 50,673,650
4,522,016 - - . 4,522.000
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TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank is not engaged in any significant trust activities. However, the Bank is holding
investments of other entities in its IPS account maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan.

s of December 31, 2023
Securities Held (Face Value)

Mo, of IPS Market Pakiztan Total
Category Accounts  Treasury Bills lmﬂt::;:m

{Rupees in "000)

Covernment Entity 3 43 000 194000 242000

Az of December 31, 2022
Securities Held (Face Value)

i Mao. of TFS M arket Pakistan Taotal
Category Accounts Treasury Bills Im;s::: nt
i

iRupees in '000)

Government Entity 3 56,500 F10.000 206,503

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank has related party relationships significantly with employee benefits, directors and key
mandgement persennel. Government of Pakistan through Ministery of Finance holds §2.64 % of the
Bank's share capital,

Transactions with key management personnel are as per the terms of their employment. Contributions
te and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefit plans are in accordance with the actuarial
valuations. Remuneration of the key management personnel are disclosed in notes 18 to these financial
statements. Other transactions are at agreed rates. Details of transactions and balances with related
parties, except as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:
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A - BALANCES
Halsneo with other hanks

In puerend sccoots
In dzgasit acenunts

Lending fo financial institutions
Oganiog balunce

Addilkde durmng {le e

Fepend during the yenr

Tranafer in § (oud) - nei

Clirding balanco

lmvesiments
Un-isted shares

Advenzes

Cpening baleren
Addificn during the year
Repdid dormng (he yoec
TransSes s {oad)
Clesing bafanes

Provision held sgainst advarcas

CHler Asscts
Emterest | mark-sp accrued
ATM seitleent aceount

Pravissds ageinst osar assels

Borrewings

Dipzning balane
Horrowings during the year
Sattled duning the year
Trasaler in/ [oul} - st
Closing balume:

Thepeeirg and Gilker acenisncs
Opaning balunce

el ved dering the year
Wahdraan during the year
Transder in { {oal) = ne
Thaalng halwwe

{kiber Liahilices

Enierest § mer k-ng payable
Paryahle 1 galT seliremieng Tund
Reegipeireil bensfit paypable

Centingencivs upd Commitmenis

023 _
Mirecior Diiher Key Chifer Tudul
[President) managesonl related
personnel parties
Wate Puajuees in 000
. . (2.344) (2,344
. . E ﬂ II H’I
1,530 - . 1,530
- - 11,B38.216 | EEIRI06
- - (11,639,216 (11,539,216}
133 - . 1S3
3 . s W54 154
L 53,704 . 65,537
{5,325 (28,770 . {34,103}
- 39,437 - 10 4ET
1510 LT — - LT
i 1wy - 541}
144 a7 - EIHLI
= - 17,705,817 17, 7T05.E17
. . P70 8T (17, T0581T)
5185 4330 1X135 11,750
48 530 106,757 757,254 22589
(41,04%) {104,285} (755,1%2) Ll E )
4 453 - 453
5'.'1!- '.'é'il'!- ‘l[IES-T ‘E
; E,541 = 3,541
Ee £ 541 - #5441
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B - TRANSACTIONS

T danee
Plark-up ¢ reliemn § interest earmed
Drvidend oo

Expensy

Mlaricup ¢ retumn / imtere s experaed
Operating expenees

Charge o defined benefi plan
Eemunermntion amnd alineancos
Dirceoor's necting feo

Eeimbarsement of capenses to drecions

A - BALANCES
Bulnpces with other Bunks

I giarred] accoints
I depromait e o mns

Lending (o Goancial bns tilutions
Drpenmy bulbinee

Addiions durag the yeor

Fepaid during the year

Transfer in/ {out) = not

Clesing balance

Ly estmenis
Lin-bsed shares

Adlvanees

Opening balince
Aaldition darmy ibo veor
Fopaid during the year
Translfer in ¢ (o)
Chosiing ba lapee

Proviskon ekl apaiss adeances

Dilier Asseis
Inegre=n ! marksup aauruascd
ATHM seitloment account

Provisim dgsiinst sthor ndsels

ol
Direcior  ither Key ke r Tutal
(President] monsgement  relomed
persoanngl pitrtie s
Hupees in "00lL
| a0 L™ |4, Bl 14, 3241
. . S0TG S026
432 535 44255 45209
e a i, [EL1 0,160
3428 G517 - 1EHL 145
. 1,550 - 1
&0 - w (1]
2023
Director Dther Key Oither Tutul
{Freskident) monsgement related
persmmae| partic s
Mate Hupecs i U0
- - RET SR
= a 48477 5477
|.575 - 1035727 3008 502
[#5] - (3,035,727 (3)0045,7T5
1,531 - - 1.530
T
.8 - - 054 W54
160 20,541 = 20,901
- 2515 . 2544
{3529 {9,861 = RERIET
& | D00 #4502 . S 502
J-?.E]-l _E‘I',T'DT = Us S5H
35 M - H45
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Harrewimgs

Openimg halance
Bamowings during ihe year
Sepiled during the yizas
Tremsfer in f {oul} - net
Closing balance

Depasits and odher accounis
Opening balancs

Beceived during the year
‘Withdrawn durisg ke yenr
Treansker in i {out} - net
Closing balance

(biher Lkabildiea
Enieres) ¢ mark-up payable

Feyable io solT retirement fund
Blegivemnent benefie payabls

Cuoatimgencies and Commimments

B - TRANSACTIONS

“Miesh-up { reparn | amneres) eamed
Dravidend inosme

Expense

Bdmk-up { recarn [ imeres expensed
Operaling expesse

Chirge 4o defined benefit plan
Remuneration sl lowances
DHirecionr's rru:ﬂlnj_ [

Reimbamsement of expenses w0 direcinas

2022
Direcior Criher key Oither Tatal
(Fresident] management related
prersonmel parties
Mode Hupees in 00
i 0EMGAZE  OAML5RE
- (hE3EEE)  [9,220,585)
1,066 T 800 10,564 3,128
1B 504 LG, 173 01 493 ¥i9.25%
{35,370 (112347 (379919 (5X7631)
UL ERS - - i
5285 3% 13 ;
13w 53 403 |.0%5
= 1.3 s 'F,:;'il'l
_ﬂ? 4145 403 H!BB'I
1,403 1,773 o 1575
- ; 12,111 12,111
341 155 JLE3 ardrl
- : 2,636 2,636
18,354 31,497 . 70,850
. 1,575 - 1,575
44 - . 43
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44, CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

2023 2022

Note s=——(Rupees in "000)—-——
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses) 44.2 2,145,044 1,912,474
Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 2,647,289 21297533
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital - .
Taotal Eligible Tier | Capital 2,647,289 2,297,533
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 459,880 326,054
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 3,107,169 Z.GEZIET
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Rigk L 5,616,914 7024355
Market Risk 45,874 438380
Operational Risk 3,168,675 2286413
Total 9,631 463 9.799.148
Common Equity Tier | capital adequacy ratio 27.49% 23 .43%
Tier | capital adequacy ratio — 274004 23 4504
Total capital adequacy ratio 32.26% 26.77%
Minimum capital requirements preseribed by SBP
Commen Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy ratio 6.00% 6.00%
Tier | Capital Adeguacy Ratio 7.50% 7.50%
Todal Capital Adequacy Ratio 1B.00% | B.00%
Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Tomal Exposures
Leverage Ratio

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Total High Quality Liguid Assets
Total Met Cash Outflow
Liguidity Coverage Eatio

Met Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Available Stable Funding
Total Required Stable Funding
Met Stable Funding Ratio
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2,647.289 2,297,533
72,537,260 52,373,849
— -0 9% 4.39%
15,458,520 20,026,153
11,860,968 10,840,576
130% 1859
199,502,152 30,654,251
77,615,764 7.043 081
257% A86%
—
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44.2

45,

45.1

Banks uses simple, maturity method and basic indicator approach for credit risk, market risk and
operational risk exposures respectively in the capital adequacy calculation.

Being a public sector Bank, and in terms of the State Bank of Pakistan prescribed minimum capital
requirements vide its letter reference BPRD/BA&KCP/627/32/2014 dated 01 January 2014, the Bank
15 required to have a minimom paid up capital (net of losses) (MCR) of Rs. 3 billion and capital
adequacy ratic of 18% at all times, subject to the condition that MCR. level shall remain enforced
until the Bank remains a public sector entity, the Bank will not be sliowed to pay dividend until its
paid up capital and reserves reach Rs. & billion and the per party exposure limit of the Bank will be
+0% of the prudential regulations limits until the Bank's paid up capital and reserves reach Rs. 6
billion. At December 31, 2023, Bank's MCR. (representing paid up capital net of aceumulated losges)
was Hs. 2.15 billion.

The full disclosures on the capital adequacy, leverage ratio & liquidity requirements as per the SBP
instructions issued from time to time are placed on the bank's website, The link to the full disclosures
is available at http:/'www fwbl.com pk/public-documents Basel-statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Banks’s activities expose it to a varicty of financial risks, including credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), liquidity risk, and operational risk. The
Banks’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markers and
seeks o minimize potential adverse effects on the Banks®s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the Banks's risk management division under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Effective risk management is considered essential in the preservation of the assets and
long-term profitability of the Bank. Clear guidelines and limits, which are under regular review, are
backed by a system of internal controls and independent audit inspections. Intemal reporting / MIS
are additional tools for measuring and controlling risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that a customer or counterparty may not setile an obligation for full value,
either when due or at any time thereafler. This risk arises from the potential that a customer's or
counterparty’s willingness or ability to meet such an obligation is impaired, resulting in an economic
loss to the Bank.

The Credit Risk Management process is driven by the Bank's Credit Risk spproved by the BOD,
This policy provides guidance in relation to credit initiation, approval, documentation and
disbursement, credit maintenance and remedial management,

Credit approval authorities are based on four eye principal with equal credit authorities given to both
Risk and Business individuals. Head Office Risk Committee is the main credit approval authority.
This committee comprises of CRO, Business Head and the President.

Bank has a Board approved Risk Appetite Statement sets Credit concentrations Portfolio,
Geographical, Industry as well as [RR based portfolic Management,.,
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The Bank uses reputable and SBF approved rating agencies for deriving risk weight o specific credit
exposures. These are applied consistently across the Bank credit portfolio for both on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet exposures. The methodology applied for using External Credit Assessment
Instrtutions (ECAI's) inclusive of the alignment of alpha numeric scale of each agency used with risk
bucket is as per SBP guidelines as is given below:

Types of Exposures and ECAL's used

2021
Exposures JCR-VIS  PACRA S&P Fitch Moody's
Corparate o T = d
Banks o o § =
Sovereign . - - =
SME's W o -

"FITCH, Moedy's and S&F rutings (as applicable) are used where soversign exposures are denominased in
ush. '

Mapping to SBF Rating Grades

For all exposures, the selected ratings are translated to the standard rating grades given by the SBP,
The mapping tables used for converting ECAI ratings to the SBP rating grades are given below:

Long Term Rating Grades mapping

SHPF Raling grade || ECA Scores JER-VIS PACRKA 5&F Fitch Moady's
A AAh AdA A, Aan
2 i AAS A+ A As+ Aal
Ay LN A A Al
A Ab- AR A Aad
At At A= A Al
F i A A Al
A= P M Ad
HERB+ GO0+ BBB+ BRE+ Bnal
3 ] EEB BEE BEE BEE Bl
BEB- BEE- BB BEBR- Baai
HA+ Lya RS BB+ BE= Beal
4 q BB BE B2 R Bl
BE- BB- BRB- BEB- Eea’
e+ | R B B El
5 5.6 B B B E Bz
B- 8- B o B3 =
3 ¥ COC+ anud birkow ) T Cor and b CICCH+ znd be oy { CCC+ and below| | Cagl and bl
= z ]
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4511 Lending to financisl institutions |

Credit risk by public / private sector

Gross lending Mon-performing lending Provision held
. 2023 2012 1023 2022 2023 2022
—-za (Rupees in B} —
Public / Gowvernment 75,502 75,602 . TA02 75,602 75,602 75,600
Private 1,945 831 97,594 fi3 487 i3 487 63487 63,487
2,021,413 6,773,196 139,089 139,089 139,089 135,089
45.1.2  Investment in debt securities
Crafitrisichy ladustey secios Gross investments Mon-performing invesiments Frovision held
. : 2023 2012 2023 pll v} 023 1
(Farpees in "M -
Public / Government {T-bills and FIB3) 44,266,359 20071 T4 . . = -
Telecommunication = ¥ -, . - s
Taxtile i 10,004 10,000 10,000 10,000 1 0,000 10,000
44|2?5|35-} zﬁlgn!?dn 10, DR 160,00 [ 14,00
1 a § %
Credit risk by public / privats sector Giross investmenis Mon-perfarming Investments Provision beld
Tazd 2012 23 022 2023 b e
(Hupees in "008) mmareees
Public ! Government o, 2, 359 29,071,740 . - - .
Private 10,000 10,600 10, B30 1,00 10,000 10,000
44, 776,355 29.0k1, 740 14,0043 10,000 10,010 101,00
Fage - &1



Grozs sdvances Hﬂ-pﬂfqrﬂﬂpﬂ_ﬁhﬂuﬂ Provisian held

2023 202 2023 012 2023 2021
ammx {Ripes [n 000)
Credit risk by pubfic | private secfor
Public! Government 2,188 605 4,711,041 = ¥ - -
Privaiz ga0s 95T 2055458 5'5”5',! 734,630 2750095 150 472
) 11,154,606 13, 780,500 S19 888 Mﬂ] 2,750,095 1 21
% ol - M2
(Repees in "000)
45.1.4 Contlnpeacies and Commitments
Credil risk by industry seclar
Textile 72,076 1,171,854
Chemical and Pharmsteuticals 106,418 73,242
Elcetronics and cleciricel appliancs 55,441 1,161,855
Conslroction i 2ETTO75 454,400
Power {electricity), Gas, Waler, Sanitary 543,232 681,123
Whalezale and Retail Trads 1067530 _
| Services 13 186,342
Crthers 20BET 392 200
4.381,180 4322 141
Credit risk by pubdie [ private sectar
Public! Govermmens 15,221 -
Private - 4,563,950 432006

4,582,180 4577016

451.5 Concentration of Advanoes

The bank top 10 éxposures on the bacis of total (fundsd and noo-funded exposures) nggregated to R 6,133 million (2022: Rs B, 583 miltion) are as following:

ik} INXx
{Rupess [n “004)
Funiled 132162 T,A54, 776
Hon Funded 1,00, R03 1, 100467
Talal Exposure 6,151 165 iggﬁﬂ-

The sanctionsd limis ogainst these top 10 exposures aggregated (o Bs 8643 millicn {2022; Rs 13,931 million),
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45,13 Advances

Crwiit il by Digumtoy seceoe Gross advances Mon-performing advances Provision held
1023 2003 2023 20022 2023 Im2
(s in "004)

Agriculture, Forestry, Humnting and Fishing 68,176 £0,114 Rl T - ¢ B Bl B 1 2451 1,196
Texiile 1,823,645 1,938,678 BT3177 470,588 470,392 a¥0,143
Chernical & Pharmacewticals 137,041 264,047 104 224 &9 550 104,224 44,084

Cament : 500,000 50,000 P - . %
Faod and Beversges 3,301,149 3,07 035 el L) L20,458 281,784 1304492
Footwenr and Leather garmests 393255 30,295 19,3255 30,395 38295 39395
Autoreobile and transporiaiion equipment &6, 166 86,324 B3 871 25,922 17,004 £.502
Electronics and electrical Appliances 11%,382 - 120,313 I18.537 [ 146,194 116,353 106,104
Construction 554,089 610,350 55,625 158,952 256,877 357,340
. Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary TBG,21E 146,315 114,07 120,305 114071 117,265
Wholesale and Retail Trade 1054383 I 054 385 86,545 4. 381 GT8,557 G715, 70
Transpart, Storage and Communication 4,874 T.H0 1,120 2,303 47 4
Serviced Q21045 23352 59,491 1,658 29,358 4018
Individuals ’ ER3.718 1,002,634 23441 6,061 4,007 L6209
Cithers 002,011 2506075 415 647 421,850 434 320 416,187
11,194 604 13,780,500 T510.688 2,734,650 7,750,094 20040
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45.1.6

Total Funded Classified therein

OAEM
Substandard
Eraultfial
Loss

Advances - ProvinceRegian-wise Disbursement & Utilizatien

Provioce / Region

Punjab

Sindh

KPE inchsding FATA

Batochisian

Istamabad

AJK imclading
Gilgir-Baltistan

Tortal

i

Froviece ! Region

Funjsb

Sindh

EPK including FATA

Balochisian

Izlzmakad

AlK imcluding
Gilgit-Baltisian

Tatal

pLrE] 2033

Amount  FProvision Held Amount Provisien Held
{Rupees in '000)

25,138 1304 42472 1,383

46,693 4,088 13,258 1,556

31,970 5,025 101,245 9950

2810287 2718717 2,571,535 1,571,535

ié]?& LTﬁES : 1,734 650 Emdh

2623
Disbursements Utilization
Punjab Kimdh KFPK including Balochlstan Islamabad AJK including
FATA Gilgit-Kaltistan
{Rapees s "000) -
11,756,049 [1,256,045 . . %

4,555,615 - 4 555615 - - - -
73,131 - 73,131 - -
I],IED - - 13,180 & -

T48,537 - = ; g8, 537 "
1,680 = - - imier - 3 aE0
16,550,158 11,256,045 iﬁﬁ-l 5 73,131 13,180 248,517 3,680
= 1022
Disburseemeats Utilization

Panjab Hindh KPK including ~ Balochislan Islamatad AJK ncluding

FATA Gilgit-Baltistzn
{Rmpees in '000) - -

B, 799,104 &.759, 1946 - 2 : - _

5510209 3 5,500,290 + - - el
44,459 - - 44 459 - = =
11,865 - - - 11,845 - -

THM A58 ¥ - . . T, 456
T - s S 6,083
15.1% 8,790, 194 %lléﬂ 42!\! llﬁ! T?-ljiiﬁ: G063
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451 Markei Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of & finencial instrument will flucteste due to movements in markes prices. It resuls from chenges in interest rates, exchange
rites and equily prices as well &s from changes in the comrelatioes between them. Each of these components of markes risk consisis of a general narket risk and a
specific market risk that is driven by the nature and compasitian of the panfolio.

" Measuring and controlling market risk is usually carried out at & portfolio level. However, cestain controls are applied, where necessary, o individual risk types.
particilar books and o specific expasures. Controls are also spplied to prevent any undue risk concentrations in trading beoks, taking inte account variations in price,
wplatility, market depth and liquidity, These controls include limits on expasure to individual market risk variables as will ze fiffiita on concentrations of tenors and
iSFueTS,

Enterprise Risk Unit is respansible for over all Market Risk Manspement. it is responsible for development and review of market risk related policies and processes
It is lso responsible for monitoring of Market Risk and adherence of Market Rick Limits, Maivtaing proper MIS is akso ene of the key funetions of this unit..

The fusctians of fhe Market Risk Management unif ané as follows:

= To keep the market risk exposurs within the Bank’s nsk appetite a3 assigned by the BobD and the BROC,

= To d.gu':lqprm.bﬁw and upgrade procedures for the effective implementation of market rizk masagesmen palicies B.FIFE‘IJ-'-'CI.J! by the BoD and BROC.

- To maintain a comprebensive dstabase for performing risk analysis, strecs teating and scenario analysia. Stress testing activities are performed on 2 quarterly basis
on both the Banking and Trading boaks.

4521 Balance sheet split by trading snd banking bosks

2023 2011
Banking = Trading Tiotnl Banking Trading Tatal
basd book ol ook
= (Hupees In ") ==
Cash and balanees with freasury banks 2838217 - 1.8 217 1309 718 - 928
Balances with other hanks 1,891 - [ 151 B - BN
' Lending to financial nstitations 1,REZ.344 - 1,882 344 6,634,107 - 6,634,107
Investements 44,359,573 - 44,359,973 28,980 964 = 28 980 909
Advances £, 220,300 . 8,220,300 11,062,156 - 11,062,154
Fixed ass=is 756,704 - T56,794 610,472 - G10A472
Tiangitle assels f 45,565 - 45,565 46,254 - 46,254

12,597 418 1,129,659 = 1,124 455

Oifher assets 12,597,418 -
WITFEE -y . 15ﬁz,§u2 S0,673,659 - 39,107,753
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4822 Poreign Exchange Rish

Foreign Exchange Risk is the risk thai the fair valos of a financial isstrament will fluctuats dee 1o changes in foreign exchinge rates. Exposures are montiored by
cutrency o ensure that they remain within the established limits for each curreney. Bxposures are also monitored on an overall basis fo ensure compliance with the
Bank's SBP approved Forsign Exchange Exposure Limit,

The Bank is 2n active participant in the cash and derivatives markets for currencies and carries carrency risk from thess trading sctivities, conducted primanly by the
Tp:mry and Capital Markets Growp (TCM), These trading e¥pediures sre mondtored through presaribied strecs tésts and sensitivity, analyses.

The Bank's reparting currency is the Pakistan Rupes, bt its aets, liabilitics, income and sxpenses are denominated in multipe currencies. From time to time, TCM
proactively hedges foreign currency exposures resulting from s market making activities, subject to pre-defined limits,

d

2023 s piLry]
Faoreign Foreign Off-balance Mt fareipn Foreign Forelzn Off-halance Mel fureign
Currency Currency it i CUTTENCY Currency Currency el B currency
Assets Liahilities EXPOELENE Assels Linbilities BI[LIrE
(Hupees n "000)
United States Dollar 431,547 411,165 = 20,382 451,251 418,356 == N 11,595
Great Britmin Pound =
Sterling i, 204 6,073 - 127 4677 4,581 - # ]
Eura 41,63% 41,098 = 541 18,963 17,684 - # 1,279
Japaness Yen 472 - . 472 411 - - # 413
Cither currencies 164 - - 144 L3k - - K 133
480,032 458,336 2 21 6R6 475 438 460,821 . 14615
f o (] 2023
Banking Trading ~ Bamking Trading
bk book bk bk
s cennan— (Bupees in "000) —-
Imipact of 1%% change in foreign exchange ralcs oo
- Profit and loss socount
+1% change i 7 - 146
~1% changs {217 ‘ 1 145)
- {khkér comprehensive meams : :
+1% change : . & a
1% changs . ; . =
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45242

453

45.4

Yield risk is the risk of decline in eamings due to adverse movement of the vield curve. Interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of fmancial instruments will flectuate due to changes in the
market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to various risks associated with the effects of fuctuation
in the prevailing levels of market inferest rates on its financial position and cash flows, The Bank

manages this nsk by matching the re-pricing of assets and labilitics and off-balance sheet
instruments.

Operational Risk

The Bank operates in a controlled manner and operational risk s generally managed effectively,
With the evolution of operation risk management into a separate distinet diseipline, the Bank's
strategy is to further strengthen risk management system along new mndustry standards,

The Bank's ORM framework includes Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicators
(KRIs), Loss Data collection (LDC),Operational Risk Events Management, and Operational Risk
Reporting. The ORM unit engages with Bank's business / support units and regularly collaboeates
in determining and reviewing the risks, and assessment of residual risk leading to improved gquality
of centrol infrastructure and strengthening of the processes (sub processes) & management
information.

The Bank's ORM framework includes Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicators
(KRIz), Operational Risk Events Management, and Operational Risk Reporting. The ORM umit
engages with Bank's business / support units and regularly collaborates in determining and

reviewing the risks, and assessment of residual risk leading to improved guality of control
infrastructure and strengthening of the processes (sub processes) & management information.

The Bank uses Basic Indicater Approach (BIA) for regulatory capital at eisl: calculation for
operational risk. Under BLA the capital charge for operational risk is a fixed percentage of average
positive annual gross income of the Bank over the past three years, Figures of capital charge of
operation risk for the vear is K& 233,49 million (2022: Rs, 182.91 million).

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able 1o raise funds to meet its commitments.

Governance of Liguidity risk management

ALCO manages the liquidity position on a continuous basis.
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Liquidity and related risks are managed through standardized processes established in the Bank.
The management of liquidity risk within the Bank is undertaken within limits and cther parameters
set by BoD. The Bank's treasury function has the primary responsibility for assessing, monitoring
and managing the Bank's liquidity and funding strategy while overall compliance is monitored and
coordinated by the ALCO. Board and senior management are apprised of Bank's liquidity profile to
ensure proactive liquidity management. Treasury Middle Office being part of the risk management
division is responsible for the independent identification, monitoring and analysis of intrinsic risks
of treasury business. The Bank has in place duly approved Treasury investment policy and strategy
along with liquidity risk tolerance/appetite levels. These are communicated at various levels so as
to ensure effective liquidity management for the Bank.

Funding Strategy

The Bank's liquidity model is based on “self-reliance™ with an extensive branch network to
diversify the Bank deposit base. Further, the Bank can also generate liquidity from Interbank
market against government securities to fund its short term reguirement, if any. The Bank as a
policy invests sipnificantly in highly liquid government securities that can be readily converted into
cash to meet unforeseen liquidity requirements, besides yielding attractive returns. Furthermare,
long term loans are generally kept at an amount lower than the Bank's capital / reserves.

Liguidity Risk Mitigation technigues

Various tools and techniques are used to measure and monitor the possible liguidity risk. These
melude monitoring of different liquidity ratios which are monitored regularly against approved
triggers and communicated to senior menagement and ALCO, Further, Bank also prepares the
makurity profile of assets and liakilities to monitor the liquidity gaps over different time buckets.
The Bank also easures that statutory cash and liquidity requirenieuts are maintained a1 all rimes.

Liquidity Stress Testing

As per 5BF BSD Circular No. 1 of 2012, Liquidity stress testing is being conducted under well-
defined stress scenarios. Results of same are escalated at the senior level so as to enable the senior
managernent to take proactive actions 1o avoid liquidity crunch for the Bank.

Contingency Funding Plan

Contingency Funding Plan (CFP) is a part of liquidity menagement framework of the Bank which
defines and identifies the factors that can instigate a liquidity crisis and the actions to be taken to
manage the crisis. The Bank has a comprehensive liquidity comtingency funding plan in place,
which highlights liquidity management strategy to be followed under stress conditions.
Contingency Event Management parameters and responsibilities are also incorporated in order o
tackle the liquidity crisis. Moreaver, CFP highlights possible funding sources focusing on self-
reliance, in case of a hiquidity crisis.
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46, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were avthorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on

R

Chie mnancial. Drirecior Direcior

Oifltcer

—




